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Limited HHI Eligible shareholders received

one ordinary share in HHI HHI Share for

every whole multiple of 10 ordinary shares

in the Company held by them An aggregate

of 88027402 ordinary shares of HHI were

distributed to the eligible shareholders

Based on the closing price of HHI Share as

traded on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited Stock Exchange on 31 March 2009

the date of distribution of HHI Shares the

aggregate market value of the HHI Shares

distributed to the eligible shareholders

was approximately HK$385 million which

represents distribution of approximately

HK43.7 cents per share of the Company

Total dividends for this year comprise cash

dividends of HK428 cents per share and non-

cash special interim dividend by way of

distribution in specie of HHI shares Excluding

the extraordinary special interim dividend of

HK$3.3 per share and the non-cash special

interim dividend by way of distribution in

specie of shares total dividends for this year

represents 57% payout of net profits before

effect of property revaluation gain

Subject to approval of the shareholders at the

forthcoming annual general meeting to be

held on October 2009 the proposed final

dividend will be paid on or about 14 October

2009 to shareholders as registered at the close

of business on 13 October 2009

Closure of Register

The Register of Members of the Company

will be closed from Wednesday October

2009 to Tuesday 13 October 2009 both days

inclusive during which period no transfer

of shares of the Company will be effected

In order to qualify for the proposed final

dividend all transfers accompanied by the

relevant share certificates must be lodged

with the Companys Registrar Computershare

Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops

1712-171617th Floor Hopewell Centre 183

Queens Road East Wanchai Hong Kong not

later than 430 p.m on Tuesday

October 2009

Business Review

During the year under review the financial

tsunami originated in 2007 from the United

States of America continued to affect the

global economy and resulted in the collapse

of global stock markets in September 2008

and the world-wide credit crunch in first

half of 2009 The economies of The Peoples

Republic of China PRC and Hong Kong

have inevitably been affected Nonetheless

the PRC Central Government has adopted

series of measures to tackle the difficulties

brought along by the financial crisis including

proactive fiscal policy moderately loose

monetary policy and stimulus package in

the order of RMB4 trillion These measures

have obtained initial success

Hopewell Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



Chairmans Statement continued

The economic growth of the Pearl River Delta

PRD region slowed down with year-on-

year growth rate in gross domestic product

of about 10% for 2008 As the liberalization

measures under the Mainland and Hong Kong

Closer Economic Partnership Arrangement

the CEPA deepen the economic

integration of Hong Kong and the PRD region

continues to accelerate The economy of

Hong Kong benefits from the integration and

remains strong as evidenced in its robust

domestic demand

ental

The performance of the Groups investment

properties remained strong for the year with

occupancy maintained at high level while

rental rates held strong The total revenue

from the Groups rental property business

in Hong Kong achieved growth of 14%

as compared to last year even though the

spot rent experienced mild downward

adjustment in the last quarter of the financial

year The average occupancy rate of Hopewell

Centre the Groups flagship property

remained at high level of about 93% Several

shops in Wu Chung House were acquired

further expanding the Groups portfolio in

the area During the year the completion of

GardenEast not only brought additional rental

revenue but also synergy to the iroups

investment portfolio of retail properties in the

Wanchai district On Kowloon side the rise

in overall occupancy rate of the Hongkong

International Trade and Exhibition Centre

HITEC boosted its rental revenue for the

year by 18% when compared to last year

Within the Group the hospitality business was

the most affected by the global financial crisis

and the human swine influenza during the

year as well as the new PRC policy forbidding

travel agencies from offering tour packages

below cost The average room occupancy rate

of the Panda Hotel dropped slightly to 80% for

the year The total revenue of the Panda Hotel

slightly decreased by 3% for the year partly

offset by the significant improvement in the

banquet business which recorded growth of

29%

Properties development

Hopewell Centre II It has been years since

the Companys original plan for the Hopewell

Centre II project was officially approved

After various rounds of consultation and

internal review the Company announced its

revised plan in November 2008 This revised

plan strikes balance between economic

development and environmental protection

under which the total number of storeys

floor area and hotel rooms have been

drastically reduced while the original size

of the green park and the scale of the road

improvement works has remained intact and

undiminished This fully demonstrated the

Companys commitment to building Wanchai

sustainable and modern business district

Hopewell Holdings Lrnited Annual Report 2009



Significant economic benefits will cascade

from the project At cost of about HK$5

billion it will usher in revitalized Wanchai

creating over 4000 jobs of different nature

during and after the construction period The

Company is committed to the project and will

continue to drive it forward with an aim for

completion in 2016

Lee Tung Street Project The Group has

formed joint venture project with Sino

Land Company Limited Sino which

has successfully won the bid for the

redevelopment of Lee Tung Street and

McGregor Street commonly called the Lee

Tung Street Project under Hong Kongs

urban renewal plan administered by the

Urban Renewal Authority URA Majority

of the project is high-grade residential

towers located in prime area which is linked

by subway to the Wanchai MTR Station

Construction is planned to commence by the

end of 2009

Hopewell Centre II and the Lee Tung Street

Project are also expected to bring synergy

with the Companys existing properties in

Wanchai including Hopewell Centre QRE

Plaza and GardenEast

Hopewell New Town in Huadu The residential

property market in the PRC including

Guangzhou has rebounded significantly since

the downturn in 2008 With the more relaxed

mortgage policy of PRC banks toward first

time buyers and the improvement in general

economic environment the sentiment in PRC

residential property market stays positive

The prospects of sale of residential units of

Hopewell New Town in Huadu due for sale in

the fourth quarter of 2009 are brightening

12 Broadwood Road The superstructure

work of 12 Broadwood Road Happy Valley

luxurious residential property development is

progressing ahead of schedule It is currently

planned to be completed in the second

quarter of 2010

Infrastructure

As for toll road business the earnings before

interest and tax for the year increased by 8%

while the profit attributable to shareholders

decreased by 47% as compared to last year

mainly due to the inclusion of the non

recurring gain on disposal of the Groups

interests in the Guangzhou East-South-West

Ring Road ESW Ring Road and exchange

gain from appreciation of Renminbi in

last years results During the year it was

announced that the estimated total amount

of investment for Phase II and Phase Ill of the

Western Delta Route Phase II West and

Phase Ill West respectively will be increased

to RMB1 2.8 billion and the contribution of

registered capital by HHI will be increased by

the total amount of approximately RMB81

million subject to the approval by the

relevant PRC authorities The construction of

Phase II West remains on track and is planned

to be completed by the end of June 2010

Application for project approval of Phase

Ill West was made Depending upon the

approval progress it is currently planned to

commence the construction of Phase Ill West

in 2010 with completion in approximately to

years

Hopewell Hodings Limited Anrual Report 2009



Chairmans Statement continued

With the continuous growth in car ownership

in Guangdong traffic and toll revenue of

Guangzhou-Shenzhen Superhighway GS
Superhighway from Class small cars rose to

historical high since the opening of the GS

Superhighway Although the export sector in

Guangdong was hit hard in the fourth quarter

of 2008 there were signs that its impact on

the traffic and toll revenue from Classes and

commercial vehicles had stabilized after

drop in the first quarter of 2009

The first unit of the ultra super-critical coal-

fired power plant project in Heyuan City

Guangdong Province Heyuan Power Plant

commenced commercial operation in January

2009 with total electricity of 11 34GWh

generated in the first half of 2009 The second

unit has also commenced operation in August

2009 The project is expected to generate

cleaner energy to Guangdong Province as

well as satisfactory results for the Group

Being part of our corporate social

responsibility initiatives the various green

measures implemented for the Groups

properties have produced good results for the

year including the significant energy savings

after the installation of water cooled chillers

in the Groups core buildings In March 2009

Hopewell Centre has been qualified as Good

Energy Performance under the Hong Kong

Energy Efficiency Registration Scheme for

Building administered by the Electrical and

Mechanical Services Department of the Hong

Kong Government

As at the balance sheet date the Group had

no outstanding corporate debt and cash

balances of about HK$5.3 billion the Group

other than HHI subgroup HK$2.5 billion

HHI subgroup HK$2.8 billion and available

committed banking facilities of HK$1 7.0

billion the Group other than HHI subgroup

HK$13.4 billion HHI subgroup HK$3.6 billion

This strong financial position enables us to

capture any good investment opportunities in

future

Prospects

The last few months of 2008 saw the worst

decline in the world economic environment

since the end of World War II With conscious

and forceful efforts taken by the governments

of major countries there are signs of

stabilization throughout the world The

economic growth rate of PRC remains high

among developing countries Furthermore

the swift policy reactions and proactive

stimulative measures put in place by the PRC

government to reform the economic structure

and to maintain the economic growth of

the country will help ensure the sustainable

development of the economy in the long run

Growth of the property business comes

from facility upgrading and expansion of

the portfolio through new projects Besides

the planned completion of the luxurious

residential rental property development at

Broadwood Road in second quarter of 2010

the Hopewell Centre II project and the Lee

Tung Street Project allow the Group to benefit

from the revitalization of Wanchai Upon the

completion of Hopewell Centre II the Groups

property and hospitality operations will be

expanded significantly

Hopewell Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



With the completion of the Phase II West

the total length of the toll expressway in

operation will be increased by about one-

third thus the recurring income base of

the infrastructure business will be further

enhanced It is currently targeted that

breakeven in cash flow would be achieved

for the first years operation of Phase II West

Further integration between Hong Kong

and Guangdong will see freer cross-border

vehicular traffic flow enhancing the potential

road users on the highway system

As to the power business the second unit

of the Heyuan Power Plant has commenced

operation in August 2009 Upon full operation

the Heyuan Power Plant is targeted to

generate satisfactory return to the Group In

view of the consistent and strong demand for

clean renewable electricity power the Group

is also actively developing its own technology

for large-scale wind turbines The Company

believes that the power industry will continue

to benefit from the steadily growing demand

for electricity in the PRC as whole

Following the announcement of series of

urban integration agreements by Guangzhou

and neighbouring Foshan City and the

further liberalization measures under the

CEPA the pace of economic integration of

the PRD region Hong Kong and Macau will

continue to accelerate This will foster the

economic development of the PRD region as

well as Hong Kong and the Groups focused

investment within such regions will benefit

The Company believes that its strategic

expressway network in the PRD region and

its property investment portfolio will provide

sustainable results and attractive yield to the

shareholders of the Company in the long run

Chanqe of Directot

Ir Leo Kwok Kee LEUNG was appointed Non-

Executive Director of the Company with effect

from July 2009 He has resigned from the

board of directors of HHI on the same day

Ackncvedqeunenr

would like to take this opportunity to thank

our shareholders customers suppliers

and business partners for their continuous

support and contribution would also like to

express my gratitude to my fellow directors

management team and all staff members for

their loyalty support and hard work Their

efforts are invaluable in contributing to the

strong performance of the Group in the past

year and for future years to come

Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU GBS KCMG FICE

Chairman

Hong Kong 26 August 2009

Hopewell Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



PROF lIE OF DIRECTORS

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU GBS KCMG F/CE

Aged 73 he is the Chairman of the Board of the Company He is also the

Chairman of HHI the listed subsidiary of the Company and director of various

subsidiaries of the Company

He graduated from Princeton University with Bachelor of Science degree

in engineering in 1958 As one of the founders of the Company he was the

Managing Director from 1972 to December 2001 before he became the

Chairman He was responsible for the Companys infrastructure projects in the

PRC and South-East Asia and has been involved in the design and construction

of numerous buildings and development projects in Hong Kong the PRC

and overseas including the Shajiao power plant which received the British

Construction Industry Award and setting world record of completion within

22 months He is husband of Lady WU Ivy Sau Ping KWOKJP Non-Executive

Director of the Company and father of Mr Thomas Jefferson WU Co-Managing

Director of the Company

He is very active in civic activities and community service his civic and

community duties include

Deputy Director Chinese Peoples Political Consultative Conference

Overseas Chinese Affairs Committee

Director United Nations Association of China

Advisor China Development Bank

cc
Vice President The Real Estate Developers Association of Hong Kong

Patron Hong Kong Logistic Association

Honorary Vice Hong Kong Football Association Limited

President

Sir Gordon received Honorary Doctorate Degrees from Hong Kong Polytechnic

University University of Strathclyde UK University of Edinburgh UK Lingnan

University Hong Kong and City University of Hong Kong He is Fellow of

The Institution of Civil Engineers UK The Chartered Institute of Logistics and

Transport in Hong Kong and Hong Kong Academy of Engineering Sciences He is

also Honorary Fellow of Australian Society of Certified Practising Accountants

He has been appointed the Honorary Consul of The Republic of Croatia in the

Hong Kong SAR His other awards include

10 Hopewell Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009
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The District of Shunde PRC

The District of Nanhai PRC

The District of Huadu PRC

The Province of Quezon the Philippines

Officer de LOrdre de Ia Couronne by HM Albert II the King of Belgium

The Order of Croatian Danica with figure of Blaz Lorkovic by the Republic of Croatia

Gold Bauhinia Star G.B.S by the Hong Kong SAR

Leader of the Year 2003 Business/Finance by Sing Tao Newspaper Group

Personality of the Year 2003 by the Asian Freight Supply Chain Awards

Knight Commander of the Order of St Michael and St George for Services

to British Exports by the Queen of England

Industry All-Star by Independent Energy USA

International CEO of the Year by George Washington University USA

Among the Best Entrepreneurs by Business Week

Man of the Year by the International Road Federation USA

Business Man of the Year by the South China Morning Post and DHL

Asia Corporate Leader by Asia Finance Magazine HK

Chevalier de LOrdre de Ia Couronne by the King of Belgium

Mr Eddie Ping Chang HO

Aged 76 he has been the Managing Director of the Company since January 2002

and the Vice Chairman of the Company since August 2003 He is the Chairman

of the Remuneration Committees of the Company Vice Chairman of HHI and

director of various subsidiaries of the Company He was previously the Deputy

Managing Director since the Company was listed on the Stock Exchange in 1972

He has extensive experience in implementation of property development and

major infrastructure strategic development projects and has been involved in

developing all of the Companys projects in the PRC including highway hotel

and power station projects He is also director and 50% beneficial owner of

HCNH Insurance Brokers Limited of which the Group has minority stake He is

an Honorary Citizen of the cities of Guartgzhou Foshan and Shenzhen and the

Shunde District in the PRC He is father of Mr Eddie Wing Chuen HO Junior an

Executive Director of the Company

The City of New Orleans USA

The City of Guangzhou PRC

The City of Foshan PRC

The City of Shenzhen PRC

2007

2007

2004

2004

2003

1997

1996

1996

1994

1994

1991

1991

1985

Hopewell Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009 11



Profile of Directors continued

Mr Thomas Jefferson WU

Aged 36 an Executive Director of the Company since June 2001 and the Chief

Operating Officer since January 2002 He was appointed Deputy Managing

Director of the Company in August 2003 and was promoted to Co-Managing

Director of the Company in July 2007 He is also the Managing Director of HHI

and director of various subsidiaries of the Company He is responsible for the

overall management of the Company

Mr WU joined the Company in 1999 as manager of Executive Committee Office

and was promoted to Group Controller in March 2000 He has been involving in

the review of the Companys operational performance strategic planning and

organizational effectiveness and has upgraded its financial and management

accounting systems He holds Master of Business Administration degree from

Stanford University and Bachelor of Science degree in Mechanical and Aerospace

Engineering from Princeton University

In 2006 the World Economic Forum selected Mr WU as Young Global Leader He

is Standing Committee member and member of the Huadu District Committee

of The Chinese Peoples Political Consultative Conference and an Honorary Citizen

of the City of Guangzhou in the PRC Mr WU is also member of the Advisory

Committee of the Securities and Futures Commission member of the Pan-Pearl

River Delta Panel of the Central Policy Unit of the Hong Kong SAR Government

member of the China Trade Advisory Committee of Hong Kong Trade Development

Council member of the Hong Kong SAR Government Steering Committee on the

Promotion of Electric Vehicles council member of The Hong Kong Polytechnic

University member of the Court of The Hong Kong University of Science and

Technology Vice Chairman of The Chamber of Hong Kong Listed Companies

member of the board of directors of The Community Chest of Hong Kong and The

Hong Kong Sports Institute Limited the Honorary Consultant of the Institute of

Accountants Exchange Honorary President of the Association of Property Agents

and Realty Developers of Macau Honorary President of the Association of Huadu

in Macau Vice Chairman of the Chinese Ice Hockey Association Honorary President

of the Macau Ice Sports Federation Chairman of Hong Kong Amateur Hockey

Club Limited and Hong Kong Academy of Ice Hockey Limited and an independent

director of Melco Crown Entertainment Limited

Mr WU is son of Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU Chairman of the Board and Lady WU

Ivy Sau Ping KWOK Non-Executive Director of the Company

12 Hopewell Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



Mr Josiah Chin Lai KWOK

Aged 57 he was appointed Deputy Managing Director of the Company in January

2002 and is also director of various subsidiaries of the Company He is solicitor by

training Previously he worked as consultant to the Company on various important

projects such as Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Zhuhai Superhighway Shajiao and Power

Stations etc Afterwards he worked as Secretary for The Hong Kong Association

of Banks Legal Director of The Airport Authority Hong Kong and Group Legal and

Compliance Director of the BNP Paribas Peregrine Group

Mr Robert Van un NIEN

Aged 62 and an Executive Director of the Compa ny since 1980 He is dh-ector

of various subsidiaries of the Company and non-executive director of Uni

Asia Finance Corporation company listed in Singapore He holds Master

of Business Administration degree from University of Pennsylvanias Wharton

Graduate Business School

Mr Albert Kam Yin YEUNG

Aged58hewasappointedasanExecutiveDirectoroftheCompanyhl

November 2002 and is also director of various subsidiaries of the Company

He is an experienced architect and mainly responsible for overseeing property

development and construction Prior to joining the Company he was director

of WMKY Limited from 1986 to 1998 and acted as consultant of the Companys

development and construction projects He holds Bachelor of Architecture

degree from the University of Hong Kong He is Registered Architect an

Authorized Person and member of The Hong Kong Institute of Architects and

various professional bodies

Mr David Yau-gay LUI

Aged 64 he was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in 1997 and

is currently director of certain subsidiaries of the Company He was previously

director of Hopewell Thailand Limited and has been involved in the Companys

Bangkok Elevated Road and Train System project in Thailand since 1990 He was

the Founding Director of Pat Davie Ltd one of the leading interior design and

contracting firms in Hong Kong

Mr Eddie Wing Chuen HO Junior

Aged 40 he was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company since

August 2003 and is also director of certain subsidiaries of the Company He

joined the Company in 1994 and held various management positions including

Director of Marketing and Sales and Deputy General Manager at the Companys

Hongkong International Trade and Exhibition Centre in Kowloon Bay He is now

involved in the power plant business He holds Bachelor of Arts degree from

California State University in the United States He is son of Mr Eddie Ping

Chang HO the Vice Chairman and Managing Director of the Company

Hopewell Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



Profile of Directors continued

Mr Barry Chung Tat MOK

Aged 51 he was appointed an Executive Director of both the Company and

HHI in August 2005 He is responsible for overseeing the finance and investor

relations functions of the Company He has Bachelor Degree in Economics

Accounting from the University of Reading United Kingdom He has extensive

knowledge in corporate finance and project finance He was previously the Chief

Executive of BOCI Capital Limited

Mr William Wing Lam WONG

Aged 52 he was appointed an Executive Director of the Company in January

2007 He has Bachelor Degree in Land Economy from Aberdeen University

United Kingdom and is Registered Professional Surveyor He has over 20 years

of experience in property and land matters He has been an Associate Director

of the Company since May 2005 He is mainly responsible for property sales and

leasing and currently director of certain subsidiaries of the Company Prior

to joining the Company he was Director of Savills Hong Kong Limited an

international property consultants firm

Of HE7 ORS

Mr Henry Hin Moh LEE

Aged 81 he has been with the Company since the Company was listed in 1972 He is Non-Executive

Director and Consultant of the Company Prior to his retirement from executive duties of the

Company in December 2001 he was responsible for real estate development and property rental

and sales of the Company He was actively engaged in the property business in Hong Kong He is an

Honorary Citizen of the city of Foshan and the Shunde district in the PRC

Lady WU Ivy Sau Ping KWOKi
Aged 60 and Non-Executive Director of the Company she joined the Board in August 1991 She serves on

the committees and boards of numerous social organizations including Asian Cultural Council Hong Kong

Asia Society and Hong Kong Red Cross She is the wife of Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU Chairman of the

Board and mother of Mr Thomas Jefferson WU Co-Managing Director of the Company

Mr Carmelo Ka Sze LEE

Aged 49 he was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in March 2001 and

was re-designated as Non-Executive Director on September 2004 He holds Bachelor of Laws degree

from the University of Hong Kong He is practicing solicitor and partner of Messrs Woo Kwan Lee

Lo Solicitors Notaries which firm rendered professional services to the Company and received normal

remuneration for such services He is also non-executive director of seven other public companies listed

on the Stock Exchange namely China Pharmaceutical Group Limited The Cross-Harbour Holdings

Limited Yugang International Limited Y.T Realty Group Limited Safety Godown Company Limited

Taifook Securities Group Limited and Termbray Industries International Holdings Limited He is also an

14 Hopewell Holdings Limited Annuel Report 2009



independent non-executive director of KWG Property Holding Limited and Ping An Insurance Group

Company of China Ltd two other public companies listed on the Stock Exchange He is also deputy

chairman of the Listing Committee of the Stock Exchange

Ir Leo Kwok Kee LEUNG

Aged 50 Non-Executive Director of the Company since July 2009 he joined subsidiary of the

Company in 1993 He was previously in-charge of the architecture engineering and construction of all

in-house projects of the Company for about 10 years before he was transferred to HHI in 2003 He is an

experienced engineer and an expert in designing and applying slipform and climbform techniques He

worked for Ove Arup Partners before joining the Company and acquired wide range of design and

construction experiences in Europe Africa and Asia in highways bridges buildings dams and tunnel

structures He graduated from Imperial College of the University of London with Master of Science

degree with Distinction in Earthquake Engineering and Structural Dynamics He was also awarded

Bachelor of Science degree with First Class Honours from the Council for National Academic Awards in

Civil Engineering as well as the Institution of Civil Engineers Prize for his outstanding undergraduate

performance In 2004 he was further awarded the PRC National Class Registered Structural Engineers

qualification He serves as committee members to number of Professional Institutions and he was

the Chairman of the Hong Kong Branch of The Institution of Highways and Transportation 2006-2007

He was an Executive Director of HHI from 2003 to 2009 and responsible for the planning design

engineering and construction of projects within HHI

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Guy Man Guy WU
Aged 52 and an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company he joined the Board in 1987

He is also member of the Audit Committee of the Company He has Bachelor of Science degree in

industrial engineering from Purdue University U.S.A He is also the Managing Director of the Liverton

Group and Video Channel Productions Limited

Ms Linda Lai Chuen LOKE

Aged 71 and an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company she joined the Board in August

1991 and is also member of both the Audit Committee and the Remuneration Committee of the

Company graduate of the University of California at Berkeley she has over 30 years of professional

experience in the securities and investment field She was the emeritus Managing Director of Dean

Witter Reynolds Hong Kong Limited and Vice President Private Wealth Management at Morgan

Stanley Inc

Mr Lee Vick NAM
Aged 62 he was appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company in September

2004 and is also an Independent Non-Executive Director of HHI He is the Chairman of the Audit

Committees and member of the Remuneration Committees of both the Company and HHI He holds

certificate in management studies from Carnegie Mellon University of the United States in 1977 He

has over 30 years experience in the banking investment and finance industry He was an Executive

Director of Liu Chong Hing Bank from 1990 to 2001 Prior to that he was Vice President at Citibank

Mellon Bank and American Express Bank He was member of the Hong Kong Deposit Protection

Board from 2004 to 2008 and Chairman of its Investment Committee from 2006 to 2008

Hopewell Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009 15









Hong Kong Renta

Property EBT HKSm

350

300

250

Hopewefi Centre and HTEC

Average Occupancy

O4Lj 1t

Hopewell Centre the 840000square foot

flagship of the Groups rental properties

recorded 19% growth in rental income

compared with last year and an average

occupancy rate of 93% Despite volatility in

financial markets the rental performance

of the property was bolstered by stable

occupancy over the year and improvement in

rental ratec Ac part of its contInuing efforts in

providing quality environment and facilities to

the tenants and retail customers of Hopewell

Centre the Group is currently refurbishing

the lift lobby and carpa by phases after

completing the modernization works of the

office floors The first phase of the carpark

renovation was completed in iy 2009 The

Group has also implemented various qreen

initiatives to improve thc facilities of the

property while saving energy and protectinq

the environment Such constant enhancement

has proved to be effective in drawing morc

and more professional and multi national

companies to relocate their offices to

Hopewell Centre Complemented by The

East brand the retail portion of Hopewill

Centre has successfully attracted more quality

food and bcverage operators offering

wider variety of dining hoices to tenants and

visitors of the building

1l
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The proper investment portfolio of the

Group has been further strengthened after

the acquisition of several retail outlets at Wu

Chung House dunng the year under review

These premises with total gross floor area

of 7670 square feet are fully let to number

of well known retailers and provide enhanced

rental revenue to the roup

HITFC corimercial and retail complex

compnsing office convention/exhibition halls

and shopping mall known as provides

unrivalled onvenience and opportunitics

for event organizers and retail operators after

repositioning into top noth multifaceted

property in 2007

For the year ended 30 June 2009 HITEC

achieved historical high overall avercge

ocupancy rate of 9100 and rental inomc has

been improving

Max 900000 square foot shopping and

entertainment destination in HIFE has

attracted wide variety of tenants offering

food bcverdye pet accessories and ervie

home design and furniture car show bowling

retail and entertainment The average

retail occupancy rate of inueased

from 79o for last year to 91o for the year

ended 30 June 2009 After the opening of

the tourist department store in the fourth

quarter of 2008 the footfalls of visitors at

have increased remarkably The visitor

number is expected to grow furthe with th

forthcoming opening of new restaurant oi

the whole 14th Floor in Septerriber 2009 by an

experiened operator as the flagship outhit
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During the year under review the increase

in supply of hotel rooms the global financial

crisis the human swine influenza and the

PRC new travel policy forbidding agencies

from offering tour packages below cost posed

immense challenges for Panda Hotel and the

tourism industry in Hong Kong

Average room occupancy for the year

decreased slightly to 80o while average room

rate slid marginally as compared to last year

Since May 2009 the occupancy has remained

low at around 50o and room rates have

remained soft mainly due to the new travel

policy Total room revenue for the year was

HK$134 million representing 6% decrease

from last yearJotal hotel revenue decreased

by 3% to HK$204 million as compared to

last year partly offset by the significant

improvement in the banquet business which

grew by 29o Mainland visitoN made up the

majority of our hotel quests while tourists

from short haul markets corporate and lonq

staying guests also contributed to steady

flow of quest arrivals

to maintain the competitiveness of Panda

Hotel in the market flexible pricing trategy

dnd vdnous mirketirq programrnts dt being

deployed to sustain th business voluri

Furthermore Panda Hotel will intairi tight

control of expenses and staff cost as well as

speed up the ongoing guestroom renovation

and facility upgrading plans in order to rc in

competitive and prepare for market reboun

Although there was market downturn for the

restaurant business thc food and beverage

operation of Panda Hotel has achieved

steady growth in its business volunc Total

food and beveraqe revenue for th year wa

HK$67 million which was 2o above that for

last year

dua ri 00
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Itr
he Compa revked the development plan

ofHopewe Centre II in November 2008

This revised plan strikes balance between

economic develop iier and environmental

protcction under which the total number of

stoieys will be reduced to about 35 while the

total floor area will be decreased to about

101600 sqrare metres The height of the

bui ding 10 metres above the principal

datum will be lower than the adjacent

Hopewell ntre Hopewell Ccntre II will be

Hong Kong Islar ds first conference hotel with

about 1024 hotel rooms the total investment

is currently planned to be about HK$5 billion

includinq HK$400 million road improvement

plan green park open for publft use and

an extensiv tree planting plan The road

improveme plan will help solve traffic

prob ems in the area and enhance the safety

of pedestrnn

Following the support of the Wan Chai

Dis ct ouncil in January 2009 the related

road improvement works of the projc Ct

gazetted on April 2009 the 60 day

pen for ibmittinq written opinions to

the Coverninent ended on June 2009

Going forward the Company will establish

two preprdtory committees for Hopewell

erit II Green rk and for onservation

and Revitalization Nam Koo ferracc

re spc ctivel Members of the Committees

will include district representatives and

relevant profc ssionals or experts Under the

current plan Hopewell Centre Ilis targeted

for completion in 2016 The Company will

cor tinue to strenqthe its communications

with variou stakeholders and diive

forward the project in line with established

procedures

In June 2009 joint venture company formed

by the Company and Sino was awarded the

tender for the tee lung Street Project in

Wanchai by Urban Renewal Authority PA
The 5050 joint venture brings together our

long term establishment and experience

in Wanchai and Sinos strong track record

in residential sales and experience in URA

projects

The Lee Tung Street/McGregor Street area

is an iconic landmark that is widely known

and full of historic value Situated in prime

location on Hong Kong Island together with

subway link to Wanchai MTR Station the Lee

fung Street Project is also expected to bring

superior transportation network to the arc

wd dnj Hi ted ui rt 25
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completion scheduled in first half of 2010

Under the current plan total of 419 units

or approximately 55000 square metres of

which approximately 25% are townhouses

and 75% are apartments of Phases and

will be made available for sale in the financial

year ending 30 June 2010 The planned total

investment for Phase and Phase are

about RMBSO million and RMB300 million

respectively

Despite the downturn of the PRC residential

property market in 2008 in terms of both

transaction volume and price there have been

signs of rapid recovery since early 2009 In

Guangzhou the purchasing power of home-

buyers remains strong and which supports

the properly price recovery Furthermore

PRC banks have relaxed policies on some loan

applications particularly for first time home

buyers resulting in mortgage growth and

positive market sentiment The long term

outlook of Huadus housing market is positive

The project is situated at the

Zhujiangxincheng region ofTianhe District

the central business district of Guangzhou It

has planned total gross floor area of about

232000 square metres including basements

Pursuant to the agreement entered

between subsidiary of the Company and

the landlord Guangzhou Lie Dc Economic

Company limited Liede Company an

integrated commercial property will be built

jointly by both parties The subsidiary of

the Company will be responsible for fitting

out and equipping the property and the

premises will be leased to the subsidiary

of the Company after its completion under

an operating lease arrangement Under the

present plan the Group intends to invest not

less than RMB1000 million in this project The

development is planned to comprise high

quality commercial complex The construction

works are planned to start in the third quarter

of 2010 with completion planned in 2015

The site is being redeveloped into

45 storey luxurious apartment building

with 78 residential units fully-equipped

clubhouse spacious landscaped areas

and carparks The property will be held for

rental targeting the premium residential

market The development has gross floor

area of approximately 113900 square feet

Constiuction is progressing smoothly and the

development is scheduled for completion

in the second quarter of 2010 Ihe currently

planned total investment is about HK$100

million Upon completion the development

will further strengthen the Groups recurring

rental income base Preliminary leasing plan is

being formulated

ewefl ddn sLim tcd Anru poit 200P
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financial pr ducts offered by PR bank

reasonablc low interest tc to refinanc

loans bearing higher inte est rates borrowed

by the jc mt venture ompan es

he construction ol Phase II West is plann

to bc completed and ready for op ration

by the end of June 2010 Iho one rio of

iaso II West traffic will help expand Hills

toll revenue base The applicato for the

ojct approv il of Ph iso Ill West is undcr

roview by the National Developmcnt ar

Reform Commisioii SuLjt to the progres

of approva it is ci rrcntly planned that

construction of Phase Ill West will comrnc nce

in 2010 and he ompletc dii approximate

to year Although the niark pro es

construction materials have reboundc
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in Sentember 2008 when HHI entered into

agreements for further investments in Phase

II West Since the prices of the steel required

to complete Phase Il West have been locked

up at levels below which were provided in the

increased investment budget in September

2008 it is expected that the final construction

cost of Phase II West will be lower than the

budgeted cost of RMB7200 million

The economic development of the western

bank of the PRD region will be integrated

optimized and accelerated in view of the

initiatives laid down in the Outline of the

Eleventh Five Year Plan for the National

Economic and Social Development in

Guangdong Province and the Outline of

the Plan for the Reform and Development

of the PRD 2008 2020 promulgated by

the National Development and Reform

Commission in December 2008 Moreover the

construction of the Hong Kong Zhuhai Macau

Bridge is expected to commence earher in

late 2009 All these will facilitate the further

expansion and enhancement of the regional

highway network bringing syncrgy effect to

the Western Delta Route

In addition it was also reported that the

authorities concerned in PRC and Hong Kong

have actively been studying to introduce

shortterm quota for crossborder private cars

It is believed that arrangements are being

considered to grant one off crossborder

licenses to Hong Kong iegistered private cars

uossing the border at Shenzhen Bay Port

before the end of 2009 HHI believes that

such arrangements will be beneficial to CS

Superhighway

1opewd1 dr Lrn td nu port 200P
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reboundino However since the fourth

quarter of 2008 the import and export trades

of Guangdong have slumped due to the

financial tsunami and the global economic

downturn In the first half of 2009 the

aggregate amount of imports and exports

fell as compared to the same period

last year In addition due to the continuous

implementation of the Green Lane policy as

well as the traffic diversion caused by the new

roads nearby the toll revenue and traffic of

GS Superhighway recovered at pace slower

than expec ed The traffic slightly dropped 2%

as compared to that of last year Nevertheless

the traffic and toll revenue of Class small

cars rose to historical high level whereas

that from Classes and commercial vehicles

had stabilized after drop in the first quarter

of 2009 Currently the daily toll revenue has

rebounded to level comparable to that

of 2006 when the historical high of daily

toll revenue was recorded HHI believes

that following the economic recovery of

Guangdong the traffic and toll revenue of GS

Superhighway will regain their momentum of

growth

From mid July to December of 2009 the

section between Guangqing interchange

and Cencun interchange of Guangihou

Northern Ring Road is completely closed

GUANGZHOUSHENZHEN SUPERHGHWAY

for maintenance works Some vehides may

have to take detour to enter or exit GS

Superhighway Preliminary observations

showed that the closure would have minimal

impact on the traffic and toll revenue of GS

Superhighway

HHI and the joint venture companies have

always attached great importance to traffic

safety Over the years ample resources

have been deployed to upgrade and

enhance the safety and servfte facilities of

GS Superhighway with view to providing

drivers with safe comfortable and speedy

expressway An intelligent traffic management

system jointly installed by the joint venture

company and the Traffic Management

Average Daily

ToD Revenue 8MB in

Average Daily Traffic

No of vehkes thousand

Annual Toil Revenue
RMB rn

Ii
200/ 208 2009

400 4000

300 3000

200 2000

100 1000

2007 2008 2009 2007 2008 2009
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tunid Upon completion appli tion II

Lx submitted to the author ties for pproval

according to the relevan rt gulations

Ac cord nq to edia reoorts the istruc ii

works of the 49 km Donqguan secti ar ci the

km Shenz it section the GLancjzhou

Sh nzhen Coastal Expressway are p1 mnned to

be completed by th end of 20 id by thc

rid of 2012 respectively HIll wi iy attcrition

to its progress Given Superhighw yS

strateg location the highway netwo

the PRD regicr and it plar ned expa sior

into tin lane expressway HHI believc that

its leading po tion as thi iain ar cry within

region can hardly be surpassed
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Pt he Western Delta Route

The Western Delta Route is scheduled to be

built in three phases Its first phase Phase

West has commenced operation since

April 2004 Phase West is 14.7 km closed

expressway with total of six lanes in dual

directions connecting ESW Ring Road to the

north and National Highway 105 and Bigui

Road of Shunde to the south Currently it

is the only expressway linking Guangzhou

and Shunde Phase West made profits and

generated positive cash flow in its first full

year of operation in financial year 2004/05

The growth in traffic and toll revenue of

Phase West slackened during the year

primarily because of the slump in import and

export trades in Guangdong and the mutual

recognition of vehicles annual passes between

GuangzhoL and Foshan since October 2008

Under this mutual recognition vehicles of

either city are exempted from paying toll for

using grade toll roads and toll bridges of the

other city Moreover the substantial growth

in traffic and toll revenue of Phase West last

year after ESW Ring Road became tollfree

since September 2007 resulted in higher base

figures During the year Phase Wests average

daily traffic was 28000 vehicles which was

comparable to that of last year and average

daily toll revenue rose to RMB4O9000

The total annual toll revenue amounted to

RMB149 million

From midJuly to December of 2009 the

section between Guangqing interchange

and Cencun interchange of Guangzhou

Northern Ring Road is completely closed

for maintenance works Some vehicles

may detour ESW Ring Road to access

GS Superhighway This may cause traffic

congestion in ESW Ring Road at the section

linking Phase West and rr ay affect th latters

traffic and toll revenue However since mid

August 2009 to end March 2010 the Sanshan

West Bridge leading to the Sanshan Container

Port in Nanhai is fully closed for maintenance

works Most vehicles especially trucks are to

be diverted to Phase West according to the

recent traffic police public notice laking into

account of the net effect of the two closjrc

it is expected that the traffic and toll revenue

of Phase West will have mild growth in the

coming year

According to the highway netwoik plan inq

of Guangzhou and Foshan several highways

currently under planning or construction

will be connected to Phase West upon

completion in the next few years These

include Foshan First Ring Road extensio link

Pingzhou Danzao Fxpressway and Ping7hou

Hope ye Pod riq on nual port 35
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Phase II of the Western Del Route

Phase II West is 46 km closed expressway

with total of six lanes in dual directions It

is connected to Phase West in Shunde at

the northern end and extends southwards to

Zhongshan linking with the National Highway

105 and the proposed Xiaolan Expressway

and the new Qijiang Highway in Zhongshan

Upon completion Phase West and Phase

II West will be the only expressways linking

Guangzhou to the central area of Zhongshan

The construction of Phase II West is currently

planned to be completed and operational by

the end of June 2010

According to the reasons stated in the joint

announcement made by the Company and

HHI on September 2008 the investment

budget for Phase II West was adjusted to

RMB7200 million HHI therefore entered

into an amendment agreement for the joint

investment in construction and operation of

Phase II West with its PRC partner the same

PRC partner of Phase West on the same day

to increase HHIs share of the registered capital

for the project by approximately RMB4O2

million1he agreement has been submitted

to he Ministry of Transport and the National

Development and Reform Commission for

approval

Although the market prices of onstruction

materials have rebounded recently they are

still lower than those seen in September 2008

when HHI entered into the agreement for

further investment in Phase Il West Moreover

since the prices of the steel required to

complete Phase II West have been locked up

at levels below which were provided in the

increased investment budget it is expected

that the final construction cost of Phase II

West will be lower than the budgeted rost of

RMB7200 million

The difference between the budgeted

investment amount and th registered capital

of Phase II West is financed by banks in PRC

Loan facility has been obtained by the joint

venture company

Based on the annual toll revenue for the first

full year of operation of CS Superhighway

and Phase West Phase II West is targeted to

achieve breakeven of cash flow in its first

full year of operation Preliminary estimation

suggests that if Phase II Wests annual toll

revenue for its first full year of operation

amounts to approximately RMB65 million pei

kilometer breakeven ot cash flow will be

achieved If it is over RMB95 million profits

will be attained During the year under review

the toll revenue of Phase West amounted to

about RMB1O million per kilometer

HopEwcfl dE Ho ted Annu Feport 2009
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Heyuan Power Plant Project is 600 MW
ultia super critical coal-fired power plant

located in Heyuan City It is one of the most

efficient and environmental friendly coal-fired

power plants in Guangdong Province today

The Group currently holds 35% effective

interest in Heyuan Power Plant which is

joint venture between our subsidiary and

Shenzhen Energy Group Company Limited

The joint venture builds owns and operates

the power plant The project cost is planned

to be about RMB5.2 billion of which 30%

as equity has been fully injected and the

remaining MB3.64 billion is funded by

syndicated project loan signed in February

2008

Based on generation technology the power

plant has achieved higher plant efficiency

than the scb-critical technology used in

China Heyuan Power Plant is in the process of

applying for Clean Development Mechanism

CDM of the Kyoto Protocol In addition to

the revenue from power sales the project

may benef from CDM in generating other

source of income Unit of the power plant

has commenced operation in January 2009

and the total electricity generated during

the first half of 2009 was 11 34GWh Unit

average utilization rate was 44% in the

financial year ended 30 June 2009 as capacity

was limited by certain new transmission lines

whkh were not yet completed until 27 July

2009 After the commencement of operation

of Unit in August 2009 and the completion

of such new transmission lines the combined

average utilization rate of Units and

reached 75% in the first week The project will

supply electricity to Guangdong Province in

particular to Heyuan and Huizhou City

In July and August 2008 the on-grid tariff rate

with desulohurization of Guangdongs coal

fired power plants was increased twice by 11%

from RMB 0.4532/kWh to RMBO.5042/kWh

he currently approved tariff rate for Unit is

RMBO.4892/kWh Application for an increase

of tariff rate for desulphurization is in process

Qinhuangdaos coal price 5500 kcal/kg has

also substantially fallen 46% from the peak

in 2008 to the level of RMB56O/ton at the

end of June 2009 Such improved business

environment alleviates the pressure on

the profitability of the PRC power industry

operators In the financial year ended 30

June 2009 the joint venture company had an

operating profit with Unit in operation for

months This was on the back of average

coal price of RMB55O/ton and on grid tanff

rate of RMBO.4892/kWh However net loss

was recorded for the financial year ended 30

June 2009 mainly due to the pre-operating

expenses incurred With Unit commencing

operation in August 2009 and based on the

current coal price of RMB56O/ton on grid tariff

rate with desulphurization of RMBO.5042/kWh

and 60% utilization rate the Heyuan Power

Plant project is targeted to have positive

contribution in the finandal year ended 30

June 2010

With goal to achieve an 8% GDP growth in

2009 the PRC government has introduced

RMB4 trillion stimulus package to boost its

economy which is further supported by the

launching of moderately loose monetary

policy RMB7 trillion new bank facilities have

been made by the commercial banks in China

for the first half of 2009 As result an increase

of 7.1% in the GDP of PRC was recorded for

the first half of 2009 and it rose 1.9% in the

second quarter of 2009 alone Despite there

is negative growth of 5% in the electricity

consumption in Guanqdong Province for

the first half of 2009 positive growth of

6.7% was recorded for June 2009 compared

to the same period of last year Given the

steady power demand in Guangdong the

management is confident that Heyuan Power

Plant project will offer reasonable and stable

return in the long term
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Note RecondUaton to Consohdated Income Statement
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As of 30 Ju ie 2009 the Groups cash balances and avaable banking facilities are as below

Cash

HHI id its subsdiarfts FIHI Group 5YY 2775

Hill Group excluding Hill Group 47
0$2 278

Available omrnitted Banking Facilities

IF Ii irup 600

HIlL cfoup exdudinq i$ 3o 133co

6Th0 6SO

cash and Availabe Committed Banking Facilities

HHI oup 9/ .75

IF IL Gioup excluding lHl Group IS

22

On top of the above available committed banking facilities the Groups available

uncommitted banking facilities amounted to HK$502 million as at 30 June 2009 HK$602

million as at 30 June 2008

The main asons for the decrease of cash balance over the last year are the payments of

dividends and capital expenditures on developing and existing projects

As at 30 June 2009 there was no corporate debt outstanding The Groups financial position

remains strong With the cash balances in hand as well as the available banking facilities

In HK$ million 2008 2009

HopeeU 4d tcd Anne Rep 12009



ciut paatni ictivtus crecerta1

tivut 35

.4%

au viii ichor Ir ypoicues.lheovt II

tic taid ptunisethc ttrucnfii ncia is ts

iyl nut ncnt to edge untertst ae exci

nI %r 1wull rflt aiynlcv

dl rnderotsdtronnatelrr iuilvunHc jic ig

.1 asno unv.sedir iry UtU utor Et tyLi lcd

lit uc tsdiruugtheyear

II ttir 1/tt iv vruluddtcufnII ii

it ii lcte4 oUt to olucatelfir it

varpkcq ocir yianoL ikiiq

tt urc It ltCroupicqUu dthccntutcqiity

rut inqwa foria .rnklybcrc ally flfl dby

fc vudratuor IKS 084 lii du nc hy
liv pu enqi dnpopcrtyivstvetaiitprru

ur hur II UE

cit Ityc rc tc ekrmcntLu and

ty ira cS it rdrw was ic er edby UIA

jSttnt uc Wind ii or utg itil ft

upa dS id our will nrtly

tI qi Icurr nrahldlrg 0oin

Liii Croi un tcr Cr ni ut ustxre

en iudcetcd bprrefl in

fipproxur yHK hI nuls pIn

rpan An 2X ntr It lo aLIt

t\ sit inotl ere ml



Others

The Group had approximately 1230 employees as at 30 June 2009 It offered competitive

remuneration packages to employees based on the prevailing market practices and

individual performance The Group provided share option and share award schemes for the

purposes of recognizing contributions by and giving incentives to the employees Details

of the schemes are set out in the Report of the Directors Discretionary bonuses would be

granted to employees subject to Individual performance as well as the business performance

of the Grot The Group provided medical Insurance coverage to all staff members and

offered Group Personal Protector to senior staff

On top of cifering competitive remuneration packages the Group also invested in human

capital development by providing relevant training programs to enhance employee

productivity Training programs are designed after taking into account employees knowledge

and skill gaps identified during performance appraisals he overall training obJectives are

to enhance employees personal productivity prepare for their future roles and thereby

contribute to the business success In addition to formal training programs the Group also

provides other learning opportunities such as on the-job training and seminars to relevant

employees Examples of training programs and seminars are set out in the Corporate Social

Responsibility Report
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The Company has long-standing tradition of

promoting community growth through supporting

economic development of the local community Early

urban renewal efforts had revitalized run-down part

of Queens Road East in Wanchai turning it into major

business area Current projects such as The East and

GardenEast also help boost local business activities

Looking ahead the Hopewell Centre II Project and Lee

Tung Street/McGregor Street Project are set to further

enhance the revitalization of the district

Realizing the significant benefits brought by facilitating

people flow and logistics between Hong Kong and

Mainland China the Company has promoted invested

designed and built the Shenzhen Railway Station

Customs and Frontier Inspection Building 1985 and

the Huanggang Cross Border Inspection Complex in

Shenzhen 1991 .The GS Superhighway 1994 the

first and only expressway connecting Guangzhou

Dongguan Shenzhen and Hong Kong serves as

major artery in the PRD and brings significant economic

value to the region Other subsequent investment and

construction projects in the region include the Shunde

Roads 1993 Boca Tigris Bridge 1997 and Guangzhou

East-South-West Ring Road 2000

Since mid-i 980s the Company has been involved

in the development of power plants in Guangdong

Province This greatly helps to relieve the problem of

power shortage and fuel the economic development

of the area The Shajiao Power Station 1987 the first

power station built by the Company in Mainland China

had capacity amounting to about one quarter of total

capacity of Guangdong power grid at that time and

played leading role in the economic development

of Guangdong Province at the beginning of the Open

Door Policy The 2x600MW Heyuan Power Plant our

most recent power project located in less developed

part of the Province will again help support the

economic development of the

surrounding area
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CORPORATEGOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company is committed to the principles of corporate governance and corporate

responsibility consistent with prudent management It is the belief of the Board that such

commitment will in the long term serve to enhance shareholdersvalue The Board has set up

procedures on corporate governance that comply with the requirements of the Code on

Corporate Governance Practices theCG Code contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules

Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited the Listing

Rules Throughout the year ended 30 June 2009 the Company has complied with all code

provisions set out in the CG Code

Board of Directors

The Company is managed through the Board which currently comprises often Executive

Directors including the Chairman four Non-Executive Directors and three Independent

Non-Executive Directors The names and biographical details of the Directors and the

relationship amongst them if any are set out on pages 10 to 15 of this Annual Report

The Board is responsible for setting the strategic direction and policies of the Group and

supervising the management Some functions including inter alia the monitoring and

approval of material transactions matters involving conflict of interest for substantial

shareholder or Director of the Company the approval of the interim and final results other

disclosures to the public or regulators and the internal control system are reserved by the

Board and the decisions relating to such matter shall be subject to the decision of the Board

Matters not specifically reserved to the Board and necessary for the daily operations of the

Company are delegated to the management under the supervision of the respective

Directors and the leadership of the Managing Directors

There are agreed procedures for the Directors upon reasonable request to seek independent

professional advice at the Companys expense in appropriate circumstances

Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU served as Chairman of the Board throughout the year and is

responsible for providing leadership and management of the Board The role of the Chairman

is separated from that of the Managing Director Mr Eddie Ping Chang HO Managing

Director and Mr Thomas Jefferson WU the son of Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU Co-Managing

Director are responsible for the day-to-day management of the business of the Company

The division of the responsibilities between the Chairman and the Managing Directors has

been established and set out clearly in writing
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Corporate Governance Report continued

Non-Executive Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors are selected with the

necessary skills and experience to provide strong independent element on the Board and to

exercise independent judgment At least one of the Independent Non-Executive Directors

has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial management

expertise as provided under Rule 3.10 of the Listing Rules The Board has received from each

Independent Non-Executive Director written annual confirmation of independence All the

Independent Non-Executive Directors meet the independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of

the Listing Rules

In accordance with the Companys Articles of Association all newly appointed Directors shall

hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company after their appointment

and shall then be eligible for re-election Every Director shall retire at the conclusion of the

annual general meeting of the Company held in the third year following the year of his/her

last appointment by the Board ii last election or iii last re-election and shall be eligible for

re-election subject to the provisions of the Articles of Association All Non-Executive

Directors and Independent Non-Executive Directors are appointed for specific term of three

years and are subject to retirement from office and re-election at least once every three years

The Board regularly reviews the plans for orderly succession for appointments to the Board

and its structure size and composition If the Board considers that it is necessary to appoint

new Directors it will set down the relevant appointment criteria which may include where

applicable the background experience professional skills personal qualities availability to

commit to the affairs of the Company and in case of Independent Non-Executive Director

the independence requirements set out in the Listing Rules from time to time Nomination of

new Director will normally be made by the Chairman and/or Managing Director and subject

to the Boards approval External consultants may be engaged if necessary to access wider

range of potential candidates

In order to facilitate the business development of the Company Ir Leo Kwok Kee LEUNG was

appointed as Non-Executive Director of the Company on July 2009 Ir LEUNG will receive

Directors fees at such rate as from time to time to be approved by the shareholders at the

annual general meetings of the Company currently being HK$200000 per annum to be paid

by the Company in arrears Under the service contract between Ir LEUNG and the Company
he is entitled to receive from the Company an annual emolument of HK$1625000 Ir LEUNGs

emolument is determined with reference to the prevailing market practice the remuneration

policies of the Company and his duties and responsibilities within the Company

Newly appointed Directors will be given an induction on the information of the Group and

manual on the duties and responsibilities as director of listed company both under the

Listing Rules and applicable laws

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of legal action against the

Directors and officers
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The Board is responsible for the Groups system of internal controls and for reviewing its

effectiveness through the Audit Committee Evaluation of the Groups internal control is

independently conducted by the Internal Audit Department on an on-going basis Internal

Audit Department reports to the Audit Committee at least twice every year on significant

findings on internal controls

For the year under review the Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the

effectiveness of the Groups internal control system

Investor Relations

The Group maintains proactive investor relations approach notwithstanding the financial

tsunami and challenging global marketsThrough active dialogues with institutional

investors and analysts the Group believes that the investment community will have better

understanding on the Groups corporate strategies business development and future

outlook Communications in times of turmoil is particularly important as it will help provide

comfort to investors

During the year under review the Group participated in number of investor conferences

local and overseas roadshows regular meetings and teleconferences with fund managers

and analysts These events allow investors to gain updates on the Groups latest

developments Analyst meetings for interim and final results announcements are arranged on

regular basis annually Through these briefings analysts and investors can interact with the

senior management of the Group

To ensure investors will have timely access to the recent developments the Group makes

extensive use of its corporate website www.hopewellholdings.com to disseminate

information in strict compliance with relevant requirements Investors can obtain the latest

corporate information such as financial data announcements press releases interim and

annual reports through the website

Visibility will continue to be emphasized in the Groups investor relations strategy Looking

ahead the Group will carry on adopting proactive and effective communication program

with investors to ensure they are adequately informed about the present and future

developments The objective of enhancing shareholder value remains intact
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report on the affairs of the Company and

the Group together with the audited financial statements for the year ended 30 June 2009

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and its subsidiaries are active in the

fields of investment in infrastructure projects property development and investment property

agency and management hotel investment and management restaurant operations and food

catering

Results

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 June 2009 are set out in the consolidated income

statement on page 87

Dividends

The Directors recommend the payment of final dividend of HK58 cents 2008 HK4O cents per

share

During the year an interim dividend of HK4O cents and an extraordinary special interim dividend of

HK330 cents 2008 interim dividend of HK55 cents and special interim dividend of HK55 cents per

share was paid on 20 March 2009 and 14 November 2008 respectively

Furthermore non-cash special interim dividend satisfied by way of distribution in specie of

shares in Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited HHI Shares was also effected during the year

HHI Shares were distributed by the Company in the proportion of one HHI Share for every whole

multiple of 10 ordinary shares in the Company held by the shareholders recorded on the register of

members of the Company as at the close of business on 19 March 2009 Definitive certificates for

the relevant HHI Shares were dispatched to the eligible shareholders by 31 March 2009 An

aggregate of 88027402 HHI Shares were distributed by the Company pursuant to the distribution

Based on the closing price per HHI Share as traded on the The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong

Limited Stock Exchange on 31 March 2009 the date of distribution of HHI Shares the

aggregate market value of the HHI Shares distributed to the eligible shareholders was

approximately HK$385 million which represents distribution of approximately HK43.7 cents per

share of the Company

Total dividends for this year comprise cash dividends of HK428 cents 2008 HK260 cents per share

and non-cash special interim dividend by way of distribution in specie of HHI Shares

Major Projects and Events

Details regarding major projects undertaken by the Group and events that have taken place during

the year under review are incorporated under the section Business Reviewas set out on pages 18

to 39
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Share Capital

Movements in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note 35 to the

consolidated financial statements

Share Premium and Reserves

Movements in share premium and reserves during the year are set out in the Consolidated

Statement of Recognised Income and Expense on page 91 and note 36 to the consolidated

financial statements

Distributable Reserve

The Companys distributable reserve at 30 June 2009 amounts to HK$2226 million 2008 HK$7159

million which represents retained profits of the Company as at that date

Donations

Donations made by the Group during the year for charitable and other purposes amounted to

HK$7337000 2008 HK$13431000

Fixed Assets

Movements in investment properties and property plant and equipment during the year are set

out in notes and 18 to the consolidated financial statements respectively Particulars regarding

the major properties and property interests of the Group are set out on pages 159 and 160

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year both the aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Groups largest

suppliers and the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the Groups largest customers

were less than 30% of total purchases and turnover of the Group respectively

Directors and Senior Management

The Directors of the Company and their profiles as at the date of this report are set out on pages 10

to 15 Changes during the year and up to the date of this report are as follows

Ir Leo Kwok Kee LEUNG appointed on July 2009
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Report of the Directors continued

In accordance with the Companys Articles of Association every Director shall retire at the

conclusion of the annul general meeting of the Company held in the third year following the year

of his/her last election/re-election and shall be eligible for re-election subject to the provisions of

the articles of association of the Company Mr Eddie Ping Chang HO Mr David Yau-gay LUI Mr
Albert Kam Yin YEUNG and Mr Eddie Wing Chuen HO Junior shall retire by rotation at the

forthcoming annual general meeting Except for Mr David Yau-gay LUI who did not offer himself

for re-election the remaining Directors being eligible offered themselves for re-election

Furthermore in accordance with the Companys Articles of Association all newly appointed

Directors shall hold office until the next following general meeting of the Company after their

appointment and shall then be eligible for re-election Ir Leo Kwok Kee LEUNG who was appointed

as Director of the Company on July 2009 shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting

and being eligible offered himself for re-election

Various businesses of the Group are respectively under the direct responsibility of the Executive

Directors of the Company and HHI who are regarded as members of the Groups senior

management

Directors Interest in Contracts of Significance

No contract of significance in relation to the Groups business to which the Company or any of its

subsidiaries was party or were parties and in which Director of the Company had material

interest whether directly or indirectly subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the

year

Directors Interests in Shares Underlying Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2009 the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief executives of the

Company in any shares underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated

corporations as defined in Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance SF0 as recorded in

the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SF0 or as otherwise

notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows
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the Company

All interests in the shares and underlying shares of equity derivatives of the Company were long positions

None of the Directors or chhf executives held any short position in the shares and underlying chares of equity

dervatives of the Company

ii The corporate interests were beneficially owned by company in which the relevant Director was deemed to

be entitled under the SF0 to exercise or control the exercise of one third or more of the voting power at its

general meeting

iii The other interests in 30680000 shares represented the interests held by Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU Sir

Gordon WUjointly with his wife Lady WU Ivy Sau Ping KWOK Lady WU

iv The interests in underlying shares of equity derivatives represented interests in options granted to Directors

under the 2003 Share Option Scheme to subscribe for shares of the Company further details of which are set

out in the section headed Share Options of the Company

ThE family interests in 24720000 shares represented the interests of Lady WU

vi The corporate interests in 1250000 shares held by Sir Gordon WU included the interests in 61 190000

shires referred to in Note viii

vii The family interests in 124743240 shares represented the interests of Sir Gordon WU This figure included

50060000 shares held by Sir Gordon WU through corporations

viii The corporate interests in 61190000 shares were held through corporations owned by Sir Gordon WLr and

Lady WU as to 50o each

ix Sir Gordon WU and Lady WU were deemed under the SF0 to have same interests with each other

Notes
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HCNH Insurance Broken Umited HCNH
Mr Eddie Ping Chang HO together with his associate beneficially owned 600000 ordinary

shares of HCNH an associated corporation of the Company representing 50% of its issued

share capital through Hong Kong Insurance Agency Limited which was 100% owned by him

together with his associate

All the above interests in the shares of associated corporations were long positions

Save as aforesaid as at 30 June 2009 none of the Directors or chief executives had any other

interests or short positions in shares underlying shares and debentures of associated corporations

which had been entered in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SF0 or

as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code

The shareholders of the Company approved the adoption of new share option scheme the 2003

Share Option Scheme effective on November2003

The 2003 Share Option Scheme will expire on 31 October2013 but any options then

outstanding will continue to be exercisable summary of some of the principal terms of the

2003 Share Option Scheme is set out in below

The 2003 Share Option Scheme is designated to provide the Company with flexible means of

giving incentive to rewarding remunerating compensating and/or providing benefits to any

eligible persons including substantial shareholders of the Company directors or employees or

consultants professionals or advisers of/to each member of the Group and for such other

purposes as the Board may approve from time to time

Under the 2003 Share Option Scheme the maximum number of shares In the Company in

respect of which options may be granted together with shares issued pursuant to options

exercIsed and shares in respect of which any option remains outstanding will not exceed 0o

of the aggregate nominal amount of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of

adoption of the 2003 Share Option Scheme unless fresh approval from the shareholders is

obtained The maximum entitlement of each participant under the 2003 Share Option Scheme

in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the issued share capital of the Company As at

the date of this report total of 67245212 shares representing approximately 7.65% of the

Issued share capital of the Company are available for issue under the 2003 Share Option

Scheme
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The period during which an option may be exercised will be determined by the boaid of

directors of HHI at its absolute discretion and shall expire not later than 10 years after the date

of grant Unless otherwise determined by the board of directors of HHI and specified in the

offer letter at the time of the offer there is no minimum period for which an option must be

held before the option can be exercised An option is open for acceptance for period of 28

days from the date of offer The amount payable on acceptance of an option is HK$ .1 he full

amount of exercise price for the subscription of shares has to be paid upon exercise of an

option The exercise price for an option shall be such price as the board of directors of HHI

may in its absolute discretion determine and notified to participant The exercise price shall

not be less than the highest of the closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock

Exchanges daily quotation sheet on the date of grant or if such date is not business day

the next following business day Grant Date the average closing price of the shares as

stated in the Stock Exchanges daily quotations sheets for the business days immediately

preceding the Grant Date and the nominal value ofa share in HHI

Details of the movement of share options under the HHI Option Scheme during the year

ended 30 June 2009 were as follows

No option was cancelled during the year
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The Binomial option pricing model was developed for use in estimating the fair value of

traded option Such option pricing model requires input of highly subjective assumptions

including the expected share price volatility As the characteristics of the options granted

during the year are significantly different from those of publicly traded options and changes

in the subjective inputs may materially affect the fair value estimate the Binomial option

pricing model does not necessarily provide reliable measure of the fair value of the share

options

The Share Award Scheme of the Company the HHL Award Scheme was adopted by the

Board on 25 January 2007 HHL Adoption Date Unless terminated earlier by the Board the

HHL Award Scheme shall be valid and effective for term of years commencing on the

HHL Adoption Date provided that no new award shall be granted on or after the 10th

anniversary of the HHL Adoption Date summary of some of the principal terms of the HHL

Award Scheme is set out in below

The purpose of the HHL Award Scheme is to recognize the contributions by certain

employees including without limitation employees who are also directors of the Group and

to give incentive in order to retain them for the ontinual operation and development of the

Group and to attract suitable personnel for further development of the Group

Undei the HHL Award Scheme the Board or where the relevant selected employee is

Director of the Company the Remuneration Committee may from time to time at its

absolute discretion and subject to such terms and conditions as it may think fit select an

employee for participation in the HHL Award Scheme and determine the numbr of shres to

be awarded The Board shall not grant any award of shares which would result in the total

number of shares which are the subject of awards granted by the Board der the HHL Award

Scheme but not counting any which have lapsed or have been forfeited representing in

aggregate over 10% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of such grant

Details of the movement of share awards under the HHL Award Scheme for the year under

review were set out below
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Details of the movement of share awards under the HHI Award Scheme for the year under

review were set out below

During the year under review the dividend income amounted to HK$475000 2008

HK$132000 had been received in respect of the shares held upon the trust for the HHI Award

Scheme and shall form part of the trust fund of such trust The trustee may apply such cash

for the purchase of HHI Shares which shall become returned shares ie the awarded shares

which are not vested in accordance with the terms of the HHI Award Scheme whether as

result of lapse or otherwise for the purpose of the HHI Award Scheme and shall be hold by

the trustee for the benefit of one or more employees of HHI or apply such cash to defray the

fees costs and expenses in relation to the establishment and administration of such scheme

or return such cash to HHI as the trustee in its absolute discretion shall at any time determine

after having taken into consideration recommendations of the remuneration committee of

the board of HHI

Save as disclosed in the previous sections headed Share Options of the CompanyYShare Options

of HHlShare Awards of the CompanyandShare Awards of HHl at no time during the year

ended 30 June 2009 was the Company or any of its subsidiaries irty to any arrangements to

enable the Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or

debentures of the Company or any other body corporate and neither the Directorc nor any of their

spouses or children under the age of 18 had any right to subscribe for the securities of the

Company or had exercised any such right

The Directorsfees are determined by shareholders at the annual general meet ng and the other

emoluments payable to Directors are determined by the Board with reference to the prevailing

market practice the Companys remuneration policy the Directorsduties and responsibilities

within the Group and contribution to the Group
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During the year the Company repurchased 5635500 shares on the Stock Exchange at an

aggregate consideration including transaction costs of approximately HK$361468000 All the

repurchased shares were subsequently cancelled The nominal value of the cancelled shares of

HK$39088750 was credited to capital redemption reserve and the aggregate consideration was

paid out from the Companys retained profits Details of the repurchases are as follows

The purchases were made for the benefit of the shareholders with view to enhancing the

earnings per share of the Company

Save as disc osed above neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased sold or

redeemed any of the Companys listed securities during the year ended 30 June 2009

The Company has received from each of the Independent NonExecutive Directors an annual

confirmation of his/her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers

such Directors to be independent

Acquisition of Mingway Company Limited

On 30 July 2008 Procelain Properties Ltd Procelain and Hopewell Properties BVI Limited

both whollyowned subsidiaries of the Company entered into an agreement the

Acquisition Agreement with Galette Company Limited Galette and Chi Chung Company

Limited for the acquisition the Acquisition by Procelain from Galette of the entire issued

share capital of Mingway Company Limited Mingway at cash consideration of HK$208.4

million the Consideration Mingway ws principally engaged iii property investrntnt and

its principal asset was its sole ownership of commercial units located on the Ground Floor

and commercial units and restaurant located on the Second Floor Wu Chung House No

213 Queens Road East Hong Kong the Properties

powH Hodngs Un td Annua Rep 209 75



cmn my Ii wad th it acquiring the Pronerties by means of th At luLmon

.1 nergy to cud ritail ctores and rest3urants located atWu hung Houst with

rc pe owne by iesot in Hopewell Centre QRE Plaza md

ar hi flirt iqi better coo dinated marketing efforts for the new dining an

nt ot ept thc La being promoted by the Croup Thi Board alsc believec

andin of thi xept could bnng more patrons to shops located in the

14 it ieiou intlatarea andbeexpectedtoinaeasetherenalywldfo

ts

iii notte lrd3paldcntNon executiveDirectorsbelitvtdthatttttermsof

we Iii in rec onabl and in he untere ts of th shareholders of the

awiol

cd th Cc any .0 July2008 Chi Chung and Cialette were direc Jy md

ii tively wholy wncdtySirGordonving Sheung WU and LadyWUlvysau

vh tl rector md substantial sharehold rs of the Company the retort

tte both nnected persons of the Company and accordir gly the

sti itcd ccnn cud ransaction of the Company

01 tI Ac itiu ition was disclosed by the Co iipany in thi an iouncement

ti y0

Mt ttA reenentsir relationtoPhasesllandiiloftheWestemDeltaRoute

tcFc 1OR tIprv.4 yanclllllJointlyiccuada alnouncmentontha

ig ri ci iq he 2008 Ph is Ill Amendment Agreements as defined hereinafter md

II it ridncnt Agi ements as defined hereinafter collectively the 2008

jrn it nts itt re into between Hopeweli Guangzhou-/huhai

II iy tios ci Li nit HHI West HK Co wholly ownc subsidiary of II

ovinn il hghw or struction Company Limited West Route P1K

Ii io iase II We 3nd Phase Ill West

008 those IllAmendmentAgreements

pt 008 HHI Wtst HK Co and West Route PRC Partner entered into the

qrterr ent inderwhi the parties thercto agreed to ame id the Sino

IL er it vi jc in ye mare contract theJV Contract dated January 2001

the iias nay lx ar nded from time to timi in relation to Phase II West and

no ial agie ci der which the parties thereto agreed to amend th

if it the.V krticles as may be amended from time to tu tie of

ir do anqhou hut West Superhighway Company Limited West Route

ti nse liiWe collectively the 2008 Phase Ill Amendment

ci



The major terms of the 2008 Phase Ill Amendment Agreements are summarised

as follows

The areas of co-operation under each of the iv Contract and JV Articles are

expanded to include the investment in and the construction and operation of

Phase Ill West and related facilities in addition to Phase West and Phase II West

ii Subject to approval by the relevant government departments the estimated

total amount of investment in Phase Ill West is to be increased from RMB3260

million excluding loan interest incurred during the construction period and

future adjustments of government charges and fees if any to RMB5600 million

including loan interest incurred during the construction period

iii The registered capital of West Route JV is to be increased by RMB1960 million

from RMB2303 million to RMB4263 million to be contributed in cash by West

Route PRC Partner and HHI West HK Co in equal share i.e each to contribute

RMB98O million20 per cent of such contribution will be made within months

and the remaining within years from the date of issue of the new business

licence of West Route JV Before the contribution of the increased registered

capital West Route PRC Partner agrees to make advances to meet the project

expenses West Route JV will pay interest at the lending rate announced byThe

Peoples Bank of China or the rate at which West Route PRC Partner actually

obtains loans whichever is lower on any project expenses advanced by West

Route PRC Partner until the date of repayment compounded quarterly

iv The duration of the West Route JV as stipulated in the iv Articles the JV

Operation Period will subject to approval of the relevant PRC authorities be 40

years commencing on the date on which the new business licence of West Route

iv is issued The JV Operation Period may be extended if unanimously resolved

by the board of directors of West Route iv and approved by regulatory

authorities which granted the original approval within months before the

expiry of the iv Operation Period

The 2008 Phase IlAmendmentAgreements

On September 2008 HHI West HK Co and West Route PRC Partner entered into the

conditional agreement under which the parties thereto agreed to amend the

Contract in relation to Phase Il West and ii the conditional agreement under which the

parties thereto agreed to amend the JV Articles in relation to Phase II West collectively

the2008 Phase II Amendment Agreements
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Report of the Directors continued

The major terms of the 2008 Phase II Amendment Agreements are summarised

as follows

Subject to the approval by the relevant government departments the estimated

total amount of investment in Phase Il West is to be increased from RMB4900

million excluding loan interest incurred during the construction period and

future adjustments of government charges and fees if any to RMB7200 million

including loan interest incurred during the construction period

ii The registered capital of West Route iv is to be further increased from RMB4263

million to RMB5068 million with the increased amount of RMB8O5 million in

total to be contributed in cash by West Route PRC Partner and HHI West HK Co in

equal share i.e each to contribute RMB4O2.5 million20 per cent of such

contribution will be made within months and the remaining within years

from the date of issue of the new business licence of West Route JV Before the

contribution of the increased registered capital West Route PRC Partner agrees to

make advances to meet the project expenses West Route iv will pay interest at

the lending rate announced byThe Peoples Bank of China or the rate at which

West Route PRC Partner actually obtains loans whichever is lower on any project

expenses advanced by West Route PRC Partner until the date of repayment

compounded quarterly

The Board of the Company believed that the traffic flow in Phase II West and Phase Ill West

would be driven by the rise in number of vehicles in Guangdong and the synergy from the

transportation network developments between Hong Kong and the western bank of PRD It

was anticipated that the total cost of construction of Phase Ill West and Phase II West will

exceed the original budget due to the increase in land acquisition and demolition costs

payable by West Route JV as result of the tightening of PRC governments control over

grants of land and the increase in compensation standards ii the increase in the prices of

construction materials iii the incorporation of loan interest to be incurred during the

construction periods and iv the change in design of Phase Ill West to add more tunnels and

bridges

The terms of the 2008 Amendment Agreements were determined after arms length

negotiations between HHI and West Route PRC Partner The Board including the

Independent Non-Executive Directors of the Company considered that the terms of the 2008

Amendment Agreements were fair and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of

the Company as whole

Pursuant to Clause 46 of the Listing Agreement between HHI and the Stock Exchange and the

letter dated August 2003 from the Company to the Stock Exchange West Route JV being

Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture enterprise jointly controlled by the HHI group which
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operates toll road project is deemed to be subsidiary of HHI and the Company for the

purposes of the then Chapter 14 of the Listing Rules which has been subdivided into

Chapters 14 and 14A since revisions of the Listing Rules came into effect on 31 March 2004

West Route PRC Partner is state-owned enterprise wholly-owned by and under the

administration of Guangdong Provincial Communication Group Company Limited

GPCG GPCG is state-owned enterprise established by the Guangdong

Provincial Government which primarily engages in the investment construction supervision

and operation of major transportation and infrastructure projects in Guangdong Province

West Route PRC Partner currently has respective 50% and 52% interest in West Route JV and

Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Zhuhai Superhighway Company Limited which is Sino-foreign

co-operative joint venture between West Route PRC Partner and subsidiary of HHI and is

accordingly deemed to be connected person of HHI and the Company for the purposes of

Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules Therefore the 2008 Amendment Agreements constituted

connected transactions of the Company The 2008 Amendment Agreements are subject to

the reporting and announcements and the requirement of independent shareholders

approval under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules The 2008 Amendment Agreements were

approved by the independent shareholders of the Company at the extraordinary general

meeting of the Company held on 13 October 2008

Relevant information on the 2008 Amendment Agreements was disclosed by the Company

and HHI in the joint announcement dated September 2008 and the joint circular dated 22

September 2008

Continuing Connected Transactions

Management Agreement with Nan Yue

On June 2007 West Route JV entered into management agreement Management

Agreement with Guangdong Nan Yue Logistics Company Limited Nan Yue subsidiary of

GPCG

Pursuant to the Management Agreement Nan Yue would provide to West Route JV the material

logistics services consisting of the planning procurement and logistics management of the main

construction materials for Phase II West Material Logistics Services.The appointment is effective

from the date of execution of such agreement and continues for three years or until the completion

of the supply of the materials payment of all material fees and after audit by the relevant

departments of West Route JV whichever is earlier The appointment may be extended by mutual

agreement The Management Agreement will terminate after the end of the term of appointment

of Nan Yue and the expiry of the warranty period which is 24 months after the completion of

Phase II West The service fee is 2.5% of the fee for the materials supplied for Phase II West and shall

be paid on quarterly basis after deduction of the 5% assurance fee such assurance fee shall be

repayable without interest to Nan Yue upon completion of the term of the Management
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Report of the Directors continued

Agreement The material shall be purchased by Nan Yue from the relevant material suppliers and

supplied to the contractors appointed by West Route JV for the construction of Phase II West

Construction Contractors.The material fee shall be payable by the Construction Contractors to

Nan Yue In the event that the relevant material supplier shall fail to supply the materials on time

upon approval by West Route JV Nan Yue shall take such actions as may be required including

using its own material stock or making purchase separately to resume the supply of materials for

Phase II West

Pursuant to the reasons disclosed in paragraph under the section headed Connected

Transactions Nan Yue being subsidiary of GPCG is deemed to be connected person of the

Company and HHI for the purposes of Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules

The service fee paid and payable to Nan Yue for the Material Logistics Services provided during the

year ended 30 June 2009 under the Management Agreement was RMB1 2.0 million 2008 RMB1 1.7

million

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company have reviewed and confirmed that the

Material Logistic Services provided by Nan Yue for the financial year ended 30 June 2009 have been

entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group on normal commercial

terms and in accordance with the Management Agreement on terms that are fair and reasonable

and in the interests of the shareholders of the Company as whole

Further pursuant to Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules the Board of Directors engaged Deloitte

ToucheTohmatsu the auditor of the Company to perform certain agreed upon procedures in

respect of the Material Logistic Services provided by Nan Yue The auditor has reported to the

Board that the Material Logistics Services transactions have received the approval of the Board of

the Company ii the amount of the Material Logistics Services fee for the year ended 30 June 2009

did not exceed the cap of RMB22 million per annum as disclosed in the joint announcement dated

June 2007 made by the Company and HHI and iii the Material Logistics Services transactions

have been entered into in accordance with the terms of the Management Agreement governing

the connected transactions

Saved as disclosed above related party transactions that did not constitute connected transactions

or continuing connected transactions made during the year are disclosed in note 44 to the

consolidated financial statements
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the knowledge of

the Directors as at the date of this report there is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the

Companys issued shares as required under the Listing Rules

Disclosure under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules

The Sino-foreign co-operative joint venture enterprises jointly controlled by the HHI Group and the

PRC joint venture partners which operate toll expressways and infrastructure projects have

following the listing of HHI on the Stock Exchange in 2003 been deemed as subsidiaries of the

Company for the purpose of the disclosure requirements under Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules

Accordingly information on advances and financial assistance to such joint venture enterprises is

no longer required under Rules 13.13 13.16 13.20 and 13.22 of the Listing Rules to be specifically

disclosed in the annual report

Auditor

resolution to re-appoint Messrs Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu as auditor of the Company will be

proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting

On behalf of the Board

Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU GBS KCMG ACE

Chairman

Hong Kong 26 August 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT

Deloitte

TO THE MEMBERS OF HOPE WELL HOLDINGS LIMITED

incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopewell Holdings Limited the Company
and its subsidiaries collectively referred to as the Group set out on pages 87 to 158 which comprise

the consolidated and Company balance sheets as at 30 June 2009 and the consolidated income

statement the consolidated statement of recognised income and expense and the consolidated cash

flow statement for the year then ended and summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory notes

Directors responsibility for the consolidated financial statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and the true and fair presentation of

these consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards

issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance This responsibility includes designing implementing and maintaining internal control

relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements

that are free from material misstatement whether due to fraud or error selecting and applying

appropriate accounting policies and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the

circumstances

Auditors responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our

audit and to report our opinion solely to you as body in accordance with section 141 of the Hong

Kong Companies Ordinance and for no other purpose We do not assume responsibility towards or

accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report We conducted our audit in accordance

with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public

Accountants Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the consolidated financial statements are free

from material misstatement
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT continued

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures

in the consolidated financial statements The procedures selected depend on the auditors judgment

including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements

whether due to fraud or error In making those risk assessments the auditor considers internal control

relevant to the entitys preparation and true and fair presentation of the consolidated financial

statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for

the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entitys internal control An audit also

includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

accounting estimates made by the directors as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the

consolidated financial statements

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide basis for

our audit opinion

Opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements give true and fair view of the state of affairs of

the Company and of the Group as at 30 June 2009 and of the Groups profit and cash flows for the year

then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly

prepared in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu

Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong

26 August 2009

86 Hopewell Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 June 2009

Notes 2008

HK$OOO

restated

2009

HK$OOO

Turnover 914962 967841

Cost of sales and services 479256 466026

435706 501815

Otherincome 416973 134118

Selling and distribution costs 85304 51281

Administrative expenses 282479 305105

Other expenses 13430 7337
Gain recognised on transfer of property to investment properties

upon completion of development 371408 510847

Gain arising from changes in fair value of investment properties 270334 209359

Gain arising from distribution in specie of shares in subsidiary 14 143572

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments 21756 1873

Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entities and associates 4741457

Gain on disposal of investment properties 27106

Gain on deemed disposal of partial interest in subsidiary 291

Finance costs 10 86759 35270
Share of profits of

Jointly controlled entities 11 1044192 1109292

Associates 6743 6858

Profit before taxation 12 6867994 2218741

Income tax expense 13 339104 221278

Profit for the year 6528890 1997463

Attributable to

Equity holders of the Company 5978766 1680851

Minority interests 550124 316612

6528890 1997463

Dividends 14 2038718 4995334

HK$ HK$

Earnings per share 15

Basic 6.66 1.90

Diluted 6.63 1.90
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
At 30 June 2009

Notes 2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated

ASSETS

Non-current Assets

Investment properties 17 8031300 9239700

Property plant and equipment 18 480373 570037

Prepaid land lease payments 19 969341 909485

Properties under development 22 442648 381783

Interests in jointly controlled entities 23 5560812 6704998

Interests in associates 24 22833 27042

Loan receivable 3064

Available-for-sale investments 25 65096 33318

Loan to jointly controlled entity 26 55451 25000

15627854 17894427

Current Assets

Inventories 27 18457 15333

Stock of properties 28

Under development 364525 407596

Completed 17593 96254

Prepaid land lease payments 19 10650 10572

Trade and other receivables 29 1117363 29111

Deposits and prepayments 46115 51183

Bank balances and cash held by 30

Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited and

its subsidiaries 5997274 2775222

Other entities in the Group 4785087 2502685

12357064 5887956

Total Assets 27984918 23782383
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET continued

At30 June2009

Notes 2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and Reserves

Share capital 35 2230806 2197373

Share premium and reserves 36 20816207 17185571

Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company 23047013 19382944

Share option reserve of subsidiary 36 2378 2974

Share award reserve ofa subsidiary 36 1124

Minority interests 36 3232569 2601477

Total Equity
_____ _____

26283084 21987395

Non-current Liabilities

Warranty provision 42a 84059 84059

Deferred tax liabilities 37 877174 1075227

Amount due to minority shareholder ofa subsidiary 34 59979 61929

1021212 1221215

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 31 489000 370551

Rental and other deposits 140293 156290

Amounts due to associates 32 9865 9741

Amount due to jointly controlled entity 32 2243

Tax liabilities 41464 34948

680622 573773

Total Liabilities 1701834 1794988

Total Equity and Liabilities 27984918 23782383

Thomas Jefferson WU Josiah Chin Lai KWOK

Co-Managing Director Deputy Managing Director
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COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
At30 June2009

Notes 2008

HK$OOO

2009

HK$OOO

ASSETS

Non-current Assets

Investments in subsidiaries 20 924500 895426

Amounts due from subsidiaries 21 12109537 9498304

Investments in associates 24 401 401

Available-for-sale investments 25 3000 3000

13037438 10397131

Current Assets

Trade and other receivables 2707 1439

Deposits and prepayments 3642 4037

Amounts due from subsidiaries 33 1232967 1252940

Bank balances and cash 30 4228504 1964150

5467820 3222566

Total Assets 18505258 13619697

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Capital and Reserves

Share capital 35 2230806 2197373

Share premium and reserves 36 15942661 11119302

18173467 13316675

Current Liabilities

Trade and other payables 5446 8603

Amounts due to associates 32 9865 9741

Amounts due to subsidiaries 33 316480 284678

Total Liabilities 331791 303022

Total Equity and Liabilities 18505258 13619697

Thomas Jefferson WU Josiah Chin Lai KWOK

Co-Managing Director Deputy Managing Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF RECOGNISED INCOME

AND EXPENSE
For the year ended 30 June 2009

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated

Exchange differences on translation of financial statements of

subsidiaries jointly controlled entities and associates 320309 42029

Gain loss arising from changes in fair value of

available-for-sale investments 48174 9910

Gain arising from changes in fair value of other properties before

reclassification to investment properties 13024

Deferred tax liabilities on changes in fair value of other properties 2149

Deferred tax liabilities on changes in fair value of

available-for-sale investments 3590

Net income expense recognised directly in equity 375768 51939

Reversal of deferred tax liabilities on disposal of

available-for-sale investments 3590

Investment revaluation reserve transferred to profit or loss on

disposal of available-for-sale investments 21756 1873

Translation reserve realised on disposal ofa jointly controlled entity 76918

Profit for the year 6528890 1997463

Total recognised income for the year 6809574 1943651

Attributable to

Equity holders of the Company 6219048 1629902

Minority interests 590526 313749

6809574 1943651
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 30 June2009

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated

OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before taxation 6867994 2218741

Adjustments for

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 2845 2845

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 36595 46681

Dividend income 2877

Gain recognised on transfer of property to investment properties

upon completion of development 371408 510847

Gain arising from changes in fair value of investment properties 270334 209359

Gain arising from distribution in specie of shares in subsidiary 143572

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments 21756 1873

Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entities and associates 4741457

Gain on disposal of investment properties 27106

Gain on deemed disposal of partial interest in subsidiary 291

Finance costs 86759 35270

Interest from bank deposits loans and receivables 288325 115359

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 622 217

Share-based payment expense 36883 29440

Share of profits of

Jointly controlled entities 1044192 1109292

Associates 6743 6858

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital 257209 236034

Increase decrease in inventories 3767 3124

Increase in stock of properties 70969 122740

Decrease increase in trade and other receivables and deposits and

prepayments 77850 9530

Decrease in trade and other payables and rental and other deposits 2094 65413

Cash generated from operations 258229 41475

Tax paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax 15968 28145

Taxation elsewhere 29051 1616

NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 213210 11714
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT continued

For the year ended 30 June 2009

Notes 2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated

IN VESTING ACTIVITIES

Interest received 292573 119936

Dividends received 576412 1104668

Acquisition of subsidiary net of cash and cash equivalents 38 208007
Additions to investment properties 248294 35159

Additions to property plant and equipment 95329 57757
Additions to prepaid land lease payments 35803 39432

Investments in jointly controlled entities 947752 111978

Repayments from jointly controlled entities 1687316 55029

Loan to jointly controlled entity 25000

Repayments to associates 803 124
Acquisition of available-for-sale investments 63784

Proceeds from disposal of available-for-sale investments 65544 21868

Disposal of subsidiary net of cash and cash equivalents 39 4571600

Proceeds from disposal of jointly controlled entity 1765907

Proceeds from disposal of associates 18

Tax paid on disposal of jointly controlled entity 132376

Add itions to properties under development 170825 191036
Net proceeds received on disposal of

Investment properties 186936

Other property plant and equipment 72 202

Acquisition of additional interest in subsidiary
_____

29572 39049

NET CASH FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 7421840 594161

FINANCING ACTI VITIES

Dividends paid to

Shareholders 2038718 4610654

Minority shareholders of subsidiaries 367297 1157244
Proceeds from issue of shares by subsidiary 592

Advances from minority shareholder of subsidiary 46921

Proceeds from issue of shares by the Company 30371 45975

Repurchase of shares 259294 361468
Advance from jointly controlled entity 2243

Loan arrangement fees and bank charges paid
________

49088 29105

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES 2636513 6110253

NET INCREASE DECREASE IN CASH AND
CASH EQUIVALENTS 4998537 5504378

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING

OFTHEYEAR 5757579 10782361

EFFECT OF FOREIGN EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES 26245 76

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR

representing bank balances and cash 10782361 5277907
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 30 June2009

GENERAL

The Company is public limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong and its shares are listed on The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Stock Exchange The address of the registered office and principal place

of business of the Company is 64th Floor Hopewell Centre 183 Queens Road East Hong Kong

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars which is also the functional currency of the

Company

During the year Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited HHI non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company
whose shares are listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange changed its functional currency from Hong Kong dollars to

Renminbi due to the change of the underlying investment activities and strategy of HHI The effect of the change of the

functional currency of HHI has been accounted for prospectively All items of the financial statements of HHI were

translated into Renminbi using the exchange rate at the date of change The resulting translated amounts for non-

monetary item are treated as their historical cost

The principal activities of the Company and it subsidiaries collectively referred to as the Group are investment in toll

road and power plant property development and investment property agency and management hotel investment and

management restaurant operations and food catering

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

KF RSs

In the current year the Group has applied the following amendments and interpretations new HKFRSs issued by the

Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants HKICPA which are or have become effective

HKAS 39 HKFRS Amendments Reclassification of Financial Assets

HKIFRIC-lnt 12 Service Concession Arrangements

HKIFRIC-lnt 13 Customer Loyalty Programme

HKIFRIC-lnt 14 HKAS 19 The Limit on Defined Benefit Asset

Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction

Service concession arrangements
In the current year certain jointly controlled entities of the Group have applied HKIFRIC-lnt 12 Service Concession

Arrangementswhich is effective for the Groups financial periods beginning on July 2008

In accordance with HKIFRIC-lnt 12 infrastructure within the scope of this interpretation is not recognised as property

plant and equipment of the operator but is recognised as an intangible asset in accordance with HKAS 38 Intangible

Assets to the extent that the operator receives right licence to charge users of the public service The financial

impact on application of this interpretation is summarised below

Summary of the effect of the changes in accounting policies of certain jointly controlled entities

of the Group
The effect of changes in accounting policies described above on the results for the current and prior year by line items

presented is as follows

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Increase in share of profit of jointly controlled entities 17780 17703

Increase in income tax expense 890 885

Increase in profit for the year 16890 16818
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended30 June2009

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
III_IF fflnr continued

Service concession arrangements continued

Summary of the effect of the changes in accounting policies of certain jointly controlled entities

of the Group continued

The effect of the application of HKIFRIC-lnt 12 as at 30 June 2008 is summarised below

Asat Asat

30.6 .2008 30.6 .2008

originally stated Adjustments restated

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Balance sheet items

Assets

Interests in jointly controlled entities 5703370 142558 5560812

Equity and liabilities

Translation reserve 387014 20068 366946

Retained profits 11552531 79569 11472962

Minority interests 3269734 37165 3232569

Deferred tax liabilities 882930 5756 877174

16092209 142558 15949651

The effect of the application of HKIFRIC-lnt 12 on the Groups equity at July 2007 is summarised below

Asat Asat

1.7.2007 1.7.2007

originallystated Adjustments restated

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Translation reserve 176114 9622 166492

Retained profits 7891295 91930 7799365

Minority interests 3058754 37929 3020825

11126163 139481 10986682

The effect of the application of HKIFRIC-lnt 12 on the Groups basic and diluted earnings per share for the current and

prior year is summarised below

Impact on basic earnings per share

2008 2009

HK$ HK$

Figures before adjustments 6.65 1.89

Adjustments arising from changes in accounting policies 0.01 0.01

Adjusted 6.66 1.90
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June 2009

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
111_II 115ni continued

Service concession arrangements continued

Summary of the effect of the changes in accounting policies of certain jointly controlled entities

of the Group continued

Impact on diluted earnings per share

2008

HK$

2009

HK$

The Group has not early applied the following new and revised standards amendments or interpretations that have

been issued but are not yet effective

HKFRSs Amendments

HKFRSs Amendments

HKAS Revised

HKAS 23 Revised

HKAS 27 Revised

HKAS 32 Amendments

HKAS 39 Amendment
HKFRS HKAS 27 Amendments

HKFRS Amendment
HKFRS Amendment

HKFRS Amendment

HKFRS Revised

HKFRS Amendment

HKFRS8

HKIFRIC-lnt 15

HKIFRIC-lnt 16

HKIFRIC-lnt 17

HKIFRIC-lnt 18

Improvements to HKFRSs 20081

Improvements to HKFRSs 20092

Presentation of Financial Statements3

Borrowing Costs3

Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements4

Puttable Financial Instruments and Obligations Arising

on Liquidation3

Eligible Hedged Items4

Cost of an Investment in Subsidiary Jointly Controlled Entity

or Associate3

Additional Exemptions for First-time Adopters5

Vesting Conditions and Cancellations3

Group Cash-settled Share-based Payment Transactions5

Business Combinations4

Improving Disclosures about Financial Instruments3

Operating Segments3

Agreements for the Construction of Real Estate3

Hedges of Net Investment in Foreign Operation6

Distribution of Non-cash Assets to Owners4

Transfers of Assets from Customers7

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 2009 except the amendments to HKFRS effective for annual periods

beginning on or after July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 2009 July 2009 and January 2010 as appropriate

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after July 2009

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 2010

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after October 2008

Effective for transfers on or after July 2009

Figures before adjustments 6.62 1.89

Adjustments arising from changes in accounting policies 0.01 0.01

Adjusted 6.63 1.90
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June 2009

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

fill_hF f1hnr continued

The application of HKFRS Revised may affect the Groups accounting for business combinations for which the

acquisition date is on or after the beginning of the first annual reporting period beginning on July 2009 HKAS 27

Revised will affect the accounting treatment for changes in the Groups ownership interest in subsidiary The

application of the amendment to HKAS 40 Investment Property which is contained in HKFRSs Amendments

Improvements to HKFRSs 2008 may affect the accounting for property under development for future use as an

investment property
of the Group The amendment to HKAS 40 brings such property within the scope of HKAS 40 which

therefore shall be accounted for under the fair value model in accordance with the Groups accounting policy Such

property is currently accounted for at cost less impairment in accordance with HKAS 16 Property Plant and Equipment

The amendment is to be applied prospectively and is effective for the Groups financial period beginning on or after

July 2009

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of the other new and revised standards amendments or

interpretations will have no material impact on the results and the financial position of the Group

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain properties and

financial instruments which are measured at fair values as explained in the accounting policies set out below

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA In

addition the consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the

Listing of Securities on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

The principal accounting policies adopted are as follows

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities including

special purpose entities controlled by the Company its subsidiaries Control is achieved where the Company has the

power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities

The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated income statement

from the effective date of acquisition or up to the effective date of disposal as appropriate

Where necessary adjustments are made to the financial statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies

into line with those used by other members of the Group

All intra-group transactions balances income and expenses are eliminated on consolidation

Minority interests in the net assets of consolidated subsidiaries are presented separately from the Groups equity therein

Minority interests in the net assets consist of the amount of those interests at the date of the original business

combination and the minoritys share of changes in equity since the date of the combination Losses applicable to the

minority in excess of the minoritys interest in the subsidiarys equity are allocated against the interests of the Group

except to the extent that the minority has binding obligation and is able to make an additional investment to cover

the losses

Business combinations

The acquisition of businesses is accounted for using the purchase method The cost of the acquisition is measured at the

aggregate of the fair values at the date of exchange of assets given liabilities incurred or assumed and equity

instruments issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree plus any costs directly attributable to the

business combination The acquirees identifiable assets liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the conditions for

recognition under HKFRS Business Combinationsare recognised at their fair values at the acquisition date
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June 2009

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Distribution in specie of shares in subsidiary
Dividend payable is recognised when the dividend is appropriately authorised and is no longer at the discretion of the

Company which is the date when the declaration of the dividend is approved by the shareholders or when the dividend

is declared

Dividend payable is measured at the fair value of the interests in subsidiary to be distributed On the settlement of

dividend payable any difference between the carrying amount of the interests in subsidiary distributed and the

carrying amount of the dividend payable is recognised in profit or loss

Investments in subsidiaries

In the Companys balance sheet investments in subsidiaries are stated at cost less any identified impairment loss

Interests in jointly controlled entities

Joint venture arrangements that involve the establishment of separate entity in which venturers have joint control

over the economic activity of the entity are referred to as jointly controlled entities

The results and assets and liabilities of jointly controlled entities are incorporated in the consolidated financial

statements using the equity method of accounting Under the equity method investments in jointly controlled entities

are carried in the consolidated balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Groups share of the

net assets of the jointly controlled entities less any identified impairment loss When the Groups share of losses of

jointly controlled entity equals or exceeds its interest in that jointly controlled entity which includes any long-term

interests that in substance form part of the Groups net investment in the jointly controlled entity the Group

discontinues recognising its share of further losses An additional share of losses is provided for and liability is

recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf

of that jointly controlled entity

The Group has incurred additional development expenditure for the construction and development of the toll

expressways operated by the jointly controlled entities which were not accounted for by those entities Such costs are

included in additional cost of investments in jointly controlled entities and are amortised over the joint venture period

on the same basis as that adopted by the relevant jointly controlled entity in respect of depreciation of its project cost

commencing from the date of operation of the project undertaken On disposal of jointly controlled entity the

attributable amount of the unamortised additional cost of investment is included in the determination of the profit or

loss on disposal

When group entity transacts with jointly controlled entity of the Group profits or losses are eliminated to the extent

of the Groups interest in the jointly controlled entity

Interests in associates

An associate is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and that is neither subsidiary nor an interest

in joint venture

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using the

equity method of accounting Under the equity method investments in associates are carried in the consolidated

balance sheet at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes in the Groups share of the net assets of the associates

less any identified impairment loss When the Groups share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that

associate which includes any long-term interests that in substance form part of the Groups net investment in the

associate the Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses An additional share of losses is provided for

and liability is recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made

payments on behalf of that associate

Where group entity transacts with an associate of the Group profits and losses are eliminated to the extent of the

Groups interest in the relevant associate

In the Companys balance sheet investments in associates are stated at cost less any identified impairment loss
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation

On initial recognition investment properties are measured at cost including any directly attributable expenditure

Subsequent to initial recognition investment properties are measured at their fair values using the fair value model

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are included in profit or loss for the period

in which they arise

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn

from use and no future economic benefits are expected from its disposal Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of

the asset calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is

included in the consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised

If an investment property becomes property plant and equipment because its use has changed as evidenced by the

commencement of owner-occupation any difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of the property at

the date of transfer is recognised in profit or loss Subsequent to the changes the property is stated at deemed cost

equivalent to the fair value at the date of transfer less subsequent accumulated depreciation and accumulated

impairment losses

Property plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment including leasehold land and buildings held for use in the production or supply of goods

or services or for administrative purposes are stated at cost or deemed cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation

and accumulated impairment losses

Depreciation is provided to write off the cost or deemed cost of items of property plant and equipment over their

estimated useful lives from the date on which they become fully operational and after taking into account of their

estimated residual value using the straight-line method

If an item of property plant and equipment becomes an investment property because its use has changed as evidenced

by end of owner-occupation any difference between the carrying amount and the fair value of that item at the date of

transfer is recognised in property revaluation reserve On the subsequent sale or retirement of the asset the relevant

revaluation reserve will be transferred directly to retained profits

An item of property plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are

expected to arise from the continued use of the asset Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset calculated

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the item is included in the

consolidated income statement in the year in which the item is derecognised

Properties under development

Properties under development classified as non-current assets includes property in the course of construction for

production or for its own use purposes as well as self-constructed investment property Properties under development

are carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss The cost of properties comprises development expenditure

other directly attributable expenses and where appropriate borrowing costs capitalised

When the leasehold land and buildings are in the course of development the leasehold land component is classified as

prepaid land lease payments and amortised on straight line basis over the lease term During the construction period

the amortisation charge provided for the leasehold land is included as part of the cost of the properties under

development
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Properties under development continued

Properties under development for production or for its own use purposes is classified to the appropriate category of

property plant and equipment when completed and ready for intended use Depreciation of these assets on the same

basis as other property assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use

Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as an investment property is classified as properties

under development and carried at cost less any recognised impairment loss Upon the completion of the development

the property is reclassified to and subsequently accounted for as investment property Any difference between the fair

value of the property at the time of reclassification and its previous carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss

Impairment
At each balance sheet date the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its assets to determine whether there is any

indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss If the recoverable amount of an asset is estimated to be

less than its carrying amount the carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount An impairment loss

is recognised in profit or loss or in equity as appropriate

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses the carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised estimate

of its recoverable amount but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would

have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years
reversal of an impairment

loss is recognised as income immediately

Prepaid land lease payments
Prepaid land lease payments which represent up-front payments to acquire interests in leasehold land are stated at

cost and amortised over the period of the lease on straight-line basis

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the balance sheet when group entity becomes party to the

contractual provisions of the instrument Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value

Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities other

than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are added to or deducted from the fair

value of the financial assets or financial liabilities as appropriate on initial recognition

Financial assets

The Groups and the Companys financial assets are classified into loans and receivables or available-for-sale financial

assets All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on trade date basis

Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time

frame established by regulation or convention in the marketplace The accounting policies adopted in respect of each

category of financial assets are set out below

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is method of calculating the amortised cost of financial asset and of allocating interest

income over the relevant period The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash

receipts including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate transaction costs and

other premiums or discounts through the expected life of the financial asset or where appropriate shorter period

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for debt instruments

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an

active market At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition loans and receivables including loan

receivable loan to jointly controlled entity trade and other receivables amounts due from subsidiaries and bank

balances and cash are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method less any identified impairment

losses see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Financial instruments continued

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated or not classified as held-to-maturity

investments financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or loans and receivables

At each balance sheet date subsequent to initial recognition available-for-sale financial assets are measured at fair

value Changes in fair value are recognised in equity until the financial asset is disposed of or is determined to be

impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in equity is removed from equity and

recognised in profit or loss see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below

For available-for-sale equity investments that do not have quoted market price in an active market and whose fair

value cannot be reliably measured they are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at each balance

sheet date subsequent to initial recognition see accounting policy on impairment loss on financial assets below

Impairment loss on financial assets

Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impairment at each balance sheet date Financial assets are impaired

where there is objective evidence that as result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the

financial asset the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected

For an available-for sale financial assets significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of that investment below its

cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment

For all other financial assets objective evidence of impairment could include

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty or

default or delinquency in interest or principal payments or

it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation

For certain categories of financial asset such as trade receivables assets that are assessed not to be impaired individually

are subsequently assessed for impairment on collective basis Objective evidence of impairment for portfolio of

receivables could include the Groups past experience of collecting payments an increase in the number of delayed

payments in the portfolio past an average credit period of 15 to 60 days observable changes in national or local

economic conditions that correlate with default on receivables

For financial assets carried at amortised cost an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss when there is objective

evidence that the asset is impaired and is measured as the difference between the assets carrying amount and the

present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate

For financial assets carried at cost the amount of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the assets

carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of

return for similar financial asset Such impairment loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods

The carrying amount of financial assets is reduced by the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the

exception of trade receivables amounts due from subsidiaries and loan to jointly controlled entity where the carrying

amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account

are recognised in profit or loss When the amounts are considered uncollectible it is written off against the allowance

account Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited to profit or loss
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Financial instruments continued

Impairment loss on financial assets continued

For financial assets measured at amortised cost if in subsequent period the amount of impairment loss decreases and

the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment losses was recognised the previously

recognised impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the

date the impairment is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not

been recognised

Impairment losses on available-for-sale financial assets carried at fair value will not be reversed in profit or loss in

subsequent periods Any increase in fair value subsequent to impairment loss is recognised directly in equity

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by group entity are classified according to the substance of the

contractual arrangements entered into and the definitions of financial liability and an equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of the group after deducting all of its

liabilities Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct issue costs

Financial liabilities including amounts due to subsidiaries amount due to minority shareholder of subsidiary trade

and other payables rental and other deposits amounts due to associates and amount due to jointly controlled entity

are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is method of calculating the amortised cost of financial liability and of allocating

interest expense over the relevant period The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future

cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability or where appropriate shorter period

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis

Derecognition

Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the assets expire or the financial assets are

transferred and the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial assets On

derecognition of financial asset the difference between the assets carrying amount and the sum of the consideration

received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognised directly in equity is recognised in

profit or loss

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation specified in the relevant contract is discharged cancelled or

expires The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid

and payable is recognised in profit or loss

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value Cost is calculated using the first-in first-out method

Stock of properties

Completed properties and properties under development for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value

Cost includes the cost of land development expenditure borrowing costs capitalised in accordance with the Groups

accounting policy and other directly attributable expenses Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business less the estimated costs necessary to make the sale determined by management based on

prevailing market conditions
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has present obligation legal or constructive as result of past event it is

probable that the Group will be required to settle the obligation and reliable estimate can be made of the amount of

the obligation

The amount recognised as provision is the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the present obligation at

the balance sheet date taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation Where provision is

measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation its carrying amount is the present value of

those cash flows

Leasing
Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership to the lessee All other leases are classified as operating leases

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in the consolidated income statement on straight-line basis over

the term of the relevant lease

The Group as lessee

Rentals payable under operating leases are charged to profit or loss on straight-line basis over the term of the relevant

lease Benefits received and receivable as an incentive to enter into an operating lease are recognised as reduction of

rental expense over the lease term on straight-line basis

Leasehold land and building

The land and building elements of lease of land and building are considered separately for the purpose of lease

classification unless the lease payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building elements in which

case the entire lease is generally treated as finance lease and accounted for as property plant and equipment To the

extent the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably leasehold interests in land are accounted for as

operating leases except for those that are classified and accounted for as investment properties under the fair value

model and those properties transferred from investment properties to property plant and equipment which are

accounted for as if it were finance lease

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity transactions in currencies other than the functional

currency of that entity foreign currencies are recorded in the respective functional currency i.e the currency of the

primary economic environment in which the entity operates at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates of the

transactions At each balance sheet date monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates

prevailing on the balance sheet date Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign

currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was determined Non-monetary items

that are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign currency are not retranslated

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items and on the translation of monetary items are

recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-

monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period except for exchange differences arising

on the retranslation of non-monetary items in respect of which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity in

which cases the exchange differences are also recognised directly in equity

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements the assets and liabilities of the Groups foreign

operations are translated into the presentation currency of the Group i.e Hong Kong dollars at the rates of exchange

prevailing at the balance sheet date and their income and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the

year unless exchange rates fluctuate significantly during the year in which case the exchange rates prevailing at the

dates of transactions are used Exchange differences arising if any are recognised as separate component of equity

the translation reserve Such exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the foreign

operation is disposed of
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES continued

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year

Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in the

consolidated income statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other

years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible The Groups liability for current tax is calculated

using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated

financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit and is accounted for

using the balance sheet liability method Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary

differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available

against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the

temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition other than in business combination of other

assets and liabilities in transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and

associates and interests in joint ventures except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary

difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no

longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset

is realised Deferred tax is charged or credited to profit or loss except when it relates to items charged or credited

directly to equity in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition construction or production of qualifying assets are capitalised

as part of the cost of those assets Capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially ready

for their intended use or sale Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific borrowings pending

their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense when employees have

rendered service entitling them to the contributions

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share option schemes the fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of share options

granted at the grant date is expensed on straight-line basis over the vesting period with corresponding increase in

equity share option reserve At the time when the share options are exercised the amount previously recognised in

share option reserve will be transferred to share premiumWhen the share options are forfeited after the vesting date or

are still not exercised at the expiry date the amount previously recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to

retained profits

For share award schemes the fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair value of awarded shares

granted at the grant date is expensed on straight-line basis over the vesting period with corresponding increase in

share award reserve The cost of acquisition of the Companys share held for the share award scheme is recorded as

treasury shares shares held for share award scheme At the time when the awarded shares are vested the amount

previously recognised in share award reserve and the amount of the relevant treasury shares will be transferred to

retained profits
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Equity-settled share-based payment transactions continued

At each balance sheet date the Group revises its estimates of the number of share options and awarded shares that are

expected to ultimately vest The impact of the revision of the estimates during the vesting period if any is recognised in

the profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve and share award reserve respectively

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable and represents amounts receivable for

goods sold and services provided in the normal course of business net of discounts and sales related taxes

Lease of properties

Rental income in respect of properties under operating leases is recognised on straight-line basis over the respective

lease term

Property agency and management

Revenue from the provision of property agency and management services is recognised when the relevant services are

provided

Property development

Revenue from sale of properties in the ordinary course of business is recognised when the development of relevant

properties has been completed at which the relevant completion certificates are issued by the respective government

authorities and the properties have been delivered to the purchasers and the collectability of related receivables is

reasonably assured Deposits and instalments received from purchasers prior to the date of revenue recognition are

included in the balance sheet under current liabilities

Infrastructure project investment

Revenue from provision of management services for infrastructure project investment is recognised when services are

rendered

Hotel investment and management
Revenue from hotel investment and management is recognised when the relevant services are provided

Restaurant operations and food catering

Revenue from restaurant operations and food catering services is recognised when goods are delivered and services are

provided

Interest income

Interest income from financial asset is accrued on time basis by reference to the principal outstanding and at the

effective interest rate applicable which is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that assets net carrying amount

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments are recognised when the Groups rights to receive payment have been established
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KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Groups accounting policies which are described in note the directors of the Company are

required to make judgements estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are

not readily apparent from other sources The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience

and other factors that are considered to be relevant Actual results may differ from these estimates

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis Revisions to accounting estimates are

recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of the

revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation of uncertainty at the

balance sheet date that have significant risk of causing material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and

liabilities within the next financial year

Investment properties

Investment properties are stated at fair value based on the valuation performed by independent professional valuers In

determining the fair value the valuers have based on method of valuation which involves certain estimates of market

conditions In relying on the valuation report the directors of the Company have exercised their judgment and are

satisfied that the assumptions used in the valuation is reflective of the current market conditions Changes to these

assumptions would result in changes in the fair value of the Groups investment properties and the corresponding

adjustments to the amount of gain or loss would be reported in the consolidated income statement

Amortisation of concession intangible assets held by jointly controlled entities and

amortisation of additional cost of investments in jointly controlled entities

Amortisation of concession intangible assets held by jointly controlled entities and amortisation of the Groups

additional cost of investments in jointly controlled entities are calculated based on the ratio of the actual traffic volume

of the underlying toll expressways compared to the total expected traffic volume of the underlying toll expressways

over the remaining concession periods of the service concession agreements of the respective jointly controlled entities

Adjustments may need to be made to the carrying amounts of the Groups interests in jointly controlled entities and

share of results of these jointly controlled entities should there be material difference between the total expected

traffic volume and the actual results

Resurfacing obligations related to toll expressways operated by jointly controlled

entities

Certain jointly controlled entities of the Group have contractual obligations under the contractual service arrangements

to maintain the toll expressways to specified level of serviceability over the respective concession periods These

obligations to maintain or restore the toll expressways except for upgrade services are to be recognised and measured

as resurfacing obligations

The amount expected to be required to settle the obligations at the balance sheet date is determined based on the

number of major resurfacing works to be undertaken over the concession periods under the service concession

agreements and the expected costs to be incurred for each event The costs are then discounted to the present value

based on pre-tax discount rate

Adjustments may need to be made to the carrying amount of the Groups interests in jointly controlled entities and

share of results of that jointly controlled entity should there be material change in the expected expenditures

resurfacing plan and discount rate

Depreciation of power plant operated by jointly controlled entity

Depreciation of power plant operated by jointly controlled entity is calculated based on units-of-production method

which are based on the expected volume of production and expected useful life of the power plant Adjustments may
need to be made to the carrying amount of the Groups interests in jointly controlled entities and share of results of that

jointly controlled entity should there be material change in the expected volume of production or useful life of the

power plant

06 Hopewell Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June2009

TURNOVER

Turnover comprises mainly income from property letting agency and management property development and service

fee income from toll road investment hotel investment and management restaurant operations and food catering and

is analysed as follows

2008

HK$OOO

2009

HK$OOO

Inter-segment revenue was charged at prices determined by the management with reference to market prices

Property letting agency and management 485394 553559

Property development 5562 3540

Toll road investment 2455

Hotel investment and management 219389 210416

Restaurant operations and food catering 202068 200278

Other operations
94 48

914962 967841

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

Business Segments
The businesses based upon which the Group reports its primary segment information are follows

Property investment property letting agency and management

Property development development of properties

Toll road investment investments in expressway projects

Hotel investment and management hotel ownership and management

Restaurants and catering restaurant operations and food catering

Power plant power plant operation

Segment information about these businesses is presented below

Segment turnover

Year ended 30 June

2008 2009

External Inter-segment Combined External Inter-segment Combined

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Property investment 485394 32152 517546 553559 42594 596153

Property development 5562 5562 3540 3540

Toll road investment 2455 2455

Hotel investment and

management 219389 13 219402 210416 181 210597

Restaurants and catering 202068 202068 200278 200278

Power plant

Other operations 94 8573 8667 48 12700 12748

Eliminations 40738 40738 55475 55475

Total turnover 914962 914962 967841 967841
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS continued

Business Segments continued

Segment results

Year ended 30 June

2008 restated 2009

Jointly Jointly

Segment controlled Segment controlled

results entities Associates Total results entities Associates Total

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Property investment

Operations 251053 1237 2135 254425 336738 594 3026 340358

Gain recognised on transfer of

property to investment properties

upon completion of development 371408 371408 510847 510847

Gain arising
from changes

in fair value of investment properties 270334 270334 209359 209359

892795 1237 2135 896167 1056944 594 3026 1060564

Propertydevelopment 31918 31918 28292 28292

Toll road investment 12047 1085421 1097468 54782 1116390 1061608

Hotelinvestmentandmanagement 54877 3880 58757 50100 3348 53448

Restaurantsandcatering 18417 18417 14630 14630

Power plant 42466 42466 568 7692 8260

Otheroperations 12007 728 11279 9900 484 9416

934211 1044192 6743 1985146 1028132 1109292 6858 2144282

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated

Segment results

Company and subsidiaries 934211 1028132

Interest and other income 291465 115885

Unallocated exchange gains losses net 37888 1033
Unallocated corporate expenses 150356 150568

1113208 992416

Gain arising from distribution in specie of shares in subsidiary 143572

Gain on disposal of available-for-sale investments 21756 1873

Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entities and associates 4741457

Gain on disposal of investment properties 27106

Gain on deemed disposal of partial interest in subsidiary 291

Finance costs 86759 35270
Share of profits of

Jointly controlled entities 1044192 1109292
Associates 6743 6858

Profit before taxation 6867994 2218741

Income tax expense 339104 221278

Profit for the year 6528890 1997463
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BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS continued

Business Segments continued

Assets and Liabilities

At 30 June 2009

Interests in

and loan

to jointly

Segment controlled Interests in Consolidated Segment Consolidated

assets entities associates total assets liabilities total liabilities

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Property investment 9330071 12053 20598 9362722 251901 251901

Property development 545457 25000 570457 85772 85772

Toll road investment 9825 6037367 6047192 35267 35267

Hotel investment and

management 383182 383182 42846 42846

Restaurants and catering 124627 124627 21259 21259

Power plant 655578 655578 62148 62148

Other operations 23583 6444 30027 17422 17422

10416745 6729998 27042 17173785 516615 516615

Available-for-sale investments 33318

Unallocated assets/liabilities 6575280 1278373

23782383 1794988

At 30 June 2008

Interests in

and loan

to jointly

Segment controlled Interests in Consolidated Segment Consolidated

assets entities associates total assets liabilities total liabilities

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated restated restated

Property investment 8104771 11459 19524 8135754 298004 298004

Property development 420788 420788 61986 61986

Toll road investment 11747 4940526 4952273 113469 13469

Hotel investment and

management 393537 393537 50728 50728

Restaurants and catering 104238 104238 23326 23326

Power plant 664278 664278

Otheroperations 18333 3309 21642 25139 25139

9053414 5616263 22833 14692510 572652 572652

Available-for-sale investments 65096

Unallocated assets/liabilities 13227312 1129182

27984918 1701834

Hopewell Holdings Limited Annual Report 2009 109



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June 2009

BUSINESS AND GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS continued

Business Segments continued

Other Information

2008 2009

Other

Other non-cash

Capital Non-cash Capital income

additions Depreciation expenses additions Depreciation expenses

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Property investment 371089 6754 133 260903 8633 16
Property development 21567 1260 826 1286

Toll road investment 8266 857 223 4837

Hotel investment and

management 27878 18384 14694 18182 255
Restaurants and catering 11204 5640 96 4295 6050 87

Other operations 176 652 88 673

Unallocated 195309 3048 223654 7020

635489 36595 229 504683 46681 184

Geographical Segments
The Groups hotel investment and management restaurants and catering activities are mainly carried out in Hong Kong

The Groups property investment and development activities are carried out in Hong Kong and the Peoples Republic of

China the PRC The Groups toll road and power plant investments are located in the PRC The following table provides

an analysis of the Groups turnover by geographical markets

Turnover

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Hong Kong 905689 961221

The PRC 9273 6620

914962 967841

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of assets and additions to investment properties property plant

and equipment and properties under development of the Group analysed by the geographical areas in which the assets

are located

Additions to investment

properties property

plant and equipment

and properties

Assets under development

2008 2009 2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated

Group segment assets

Hong Kong 8655029 9886270 418565 280079

The PRC 397746 529933 21615 950

Other regions 639 542

9053414 10416745 440180 281029
Otherassets Note 18931504 13365638 195309 223654

27984918 23782383 635489 504683

Note Unallocated assets mainly include bank deposits interests in and loan to jointly controlled entities and available-for-sale

investments
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June2009

OTHER INCOME

Notes

2008

HK$OOO

2009

HK$OOO

During the year ended 30 June 2008 the Group disposed of its equity interest in and loans to subsidiary of the Company

Nomusa Limited Nomusa which was principally engaged in investment holding and its equity interests in two associates

namely Nova City Property Management Limited Nova City and Nova Taipa Gardens Property Management Limited Nova
Gardens which were principally engaged in property management to fellow subsidiary of shareholder of the Groups

jointly controlled entity Nova Taipa-Urbanizacoes Limitada Nova Taipa for total consideration of HK$4580 million The sole

assets of Nomusa are the 50% equity interest in and loans to Nova Taipa which was principally engaged in property

development The disposal gave rise to gain amounting to HK$3948 million which was recognised in the Groups consolidated

income statement for the year ended 30 June 2008

During the year ended 30 June 2008 the Group disposed of its entire interest in jointly controlled entity ESW Ring Road JV for

consideration of RMB1712.55 million ESW Ring Road JV was principally engaged in the construction operation and

management of Guangzhou East-South-West Ring Road in the PRC The disposal gave rise to gain amounting to HK$793

million which was recognised in the Groups consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 June 2008

10 FINANCE COSTS

Loan arrangement fees and bank charges 65849 33320

Imputed interest on amount due to minority shareholder of subsidiary 1950

Interest reimbursed to jointly controlled entity Note 20910

86759 35270

Note ESW Ring Road JV had in the past raised bank loans to finance the development of its road project The interests of such bank

loans were reimbursed by the Hong Kong joint venture partners The Groups entire interest in ESW Ring Road JV was disposed

of during the year ended 30 June 2008 as referred to in note 9b

Included in other income are

Interest from

Bank deposits 283502 115199

Loans and other receivables 4823 160

Dividend income from listed securities 2877

Exchange gains 111362 418

OTHER EXPENSES

The other expenses represent charitable donations made by the Group

GAIN ON DISPOSAL OF JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES AND ASSOCIATES

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entity and associates engaged

in property development and property management Note 3948285

Gain on disposal of jointly controlled entity engaged in the operation

of an expressway Note 793172

4741457

2008

HK$OOO

2009

HK$OOO
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June2009

11 SHARE OF PROFITS OF JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

2008

HK$OOO

restated

2009

HK$OOO

Note The amount includes imputed interest on interest free loans advanced by the Group to jointly controlled entity amounting to

HK$3.8 million 2008 HK$3.6 million

12 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION

2008

HK$OOO

restated

Share of profits of jointly controlled entities before interest income

from loans to and amortisation of additional cost of investments in

jointly controlled entities 1102851 1189952

Interest income from loans to and registered capital contribution

made to jointly controlled entities Note 23258 3946

Amortisation of additional cost of investments in jointly controlled entities 81917 84606

1044192 1109292

2009

HK$OOO

13

Profit before taxation has been arrived at after charging crediting

Auditors remuneration 6234 5868

Depreciation of property plant and equipment 36595 46681

Amortisation of prepaid land lease payments 10650 10572

Less Amount capitalised to properties under development 7805 7727

2845 2845

Loss on disposal of property plant and equipment 622 217

Rental expense in respect of properties under operating leases 1125 1083

Staff costs including directors emoluments 338095 337040

Share of tax of jointly controlled entities included in share of profits

of jointly controlled entities 211945 130931

Share of tax of associates included in share of profits of associates 588 394

Rental income from investment properties less attributable outgoings

of HK$212141000 2008 HK$183656000 279082 334064

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated

Hong Kong Profits Tax

Current year 24529 25010

Underover provision in respect of prior years 270 3022

24799 21988

Taxation elsewhere

Currentyear 164556 1237

Deferred tax note 37 149749 198053

339104 221278
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June2009

13 INCOME TAX EXPENSE continued

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 16.5% 2008 16.5% on the estimated assessable profit for the year

Taxes on profits assessable elsewhere are calculated at the tax rates prevailing in the countries in which the Group

operates

Taxation elsewhere for 2008 represented mainly the PRC Enterprise Income Tax amounting to approximately HK$23

million on receipt of RMB725 million from the Groups jointly controlled entity Guangzhou Shenzhen Zhuhai

Superhighway Company Limited GS Superhighway JV in relation to repayment of additional development

expenditure for the construction and development of the toll expressway operated by GS Superhighway JV previously

incurred by the Group note 23a and the PRC withholding tax paid in relation to the disposal of interest in ESW Ring

Road JV amounted to approximately HK$132 million note 9b which were calculated at the rates then prevailing in

the PRC

On 16 March 2007 the Peoples Republic of China promulgated the Law of the Peoples Republic of China on Enterprise

Income Tax theNew Law by Order No.63 of the President of the Peoples Republic of China On December 2007 the

State Council of the Peoples Republic of China issued Implementation Regulations of the New Law The New Law and

Implementation Regulations has changed the tax rate for the Groups PRC subsidiaries from 33% to 25% commencing

January 2008

Details of deferred taxation are set out in note 37

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before taxation per the consolidated income

statement as follows

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated

Profit before taxation 6867994 2218741

Tax at Hong Kong Profitslax rate of 16.5% 2008 16.5% 1133219 366092

Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax purposes 36800 24694

Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purposes 723155 49297
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 22107 14535

Tax effect of utilisation of and recognition of deferred tax

on tax loss not previously recognised 16031 5337
Tax effect of utilisation of deductible temporary differences not

previously recognised 13
Tax effect of share of profits of jointly controlled entities and associates 173404 184165

PRC Enterprise Income Tax on the repayment of the Groups additional

cost of investments 22889

Underover provision in respect of prior years 270 3022
Decrease in the opening deferred tax liability resulting from decrease

in tax rates 41824
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries operating in other jurisdictions 10403 99
Deferred tax on undistributed earnings of PRC jointly controlled entities 68898 56212

Others 1055 1665

Income tax expense for the year 339104 221278
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June 2009

14 DIVIDENDS

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Dividends recognised as distribution during the year

Cash dividends

Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2008 of

HK4O cents per share 2008 for the year ended

30 June 2007 of HK82 cents per share 737658 355626

Special final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2008

of HK1 10 cents per share 2008 for the year ended

30 June 2007 of HK35 cents per share 314854 977971

Less Dividends for shares held by HHL Employees Share

Award Scheme Trust note 35 838 591

1051674 1333006

Interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2009 of

HK40 cents per share 2008 for the year ended

30 June 2008 of HK55 cents per share 493738 352110

Special interim dividend for the year ended 30 June 2009

of HK330 cents per share 2008 for the year ended

30 June 2008 of HK55 cents per share 493738 2926867

Less Dividends for shares held by HHL Employees Share Award Scheme Trust

note 35 432 1329

987044 3277648

2038718 4610654

Special interim dividend by way of distribution in specie Note 384680

2038718 4995334

Dividends proposed

Final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2009

of HK58 cents per share 2008 for the year ended 30 June 2008

of HK4O cents per share 356168 509790

Special final dividend for the year ended 30 June 2009 Nil

2008 for the year ended 30 June 2008 of HK1 10 cents per share 979463

1335631 509790

Less Dividends for shares held by HHL Employees Share

Award Scheme Trust note 35 591 42

1335040 509748

Note On 26 February 2009 the Board declared special interim dividend to be satisfied by way of distribution of specie of shares in

HHI in the proportion of one share in HHI for every whole multiple of 10 shares in the Company held by the shareholders total

of 88027402 HHI shares with an aggregate market value of HK$384680000 were recognised as distribution during the year

The difference between the market value of HK$384680000 of shares in HHI being distributed and the carrying amount

of the respective interest in HHI of HK$241108000 has resulted in gain on distribution in specie of shares in HHI of

HK$143572000 which is recognised in the consolidated income statement in current year

The proposed final dividend of HK58 cents per share has been proposed by the directors and is subject to approval by

the shareholders in general meeting

The proposed final dividend is calculated based on the number of shares in issue less the dividend for shares held by

HHL Employees Share Award Scheme Trust at the date of approval of these financial statements
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June2009

15 EARNINGS PER SHARE

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share is based

on the following data

Earnings for the purposes of basic earnings per share

Profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company 5978766 1680851

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares of HHI note 35
Adjustment to the Groups results arising from dilution

of HHIs earnings attributable to share options issued

and shares awarded 651

Earnings for the purposes of diluted earnings per share 5978115 1680851

Number Number

of shares of shares

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes

of basic earnings per share 897350773 883705880

Effect of dilutive potential ordinary shares

Share options 3091655 392960

Award shares 513355 255496

Weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purposes

of diluted earnings per share 900955783 884354336

The weighted average number of ordinary shares shown above has been arrived at after deducting 72000 shares 2008

394000 shares held by HHL Employees Share Award Scheme Trust as set out in note 35
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June 2009

16 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

Directors emoluments

Certain directors of the Company are also directors of HHI.The emoluments paid or payable by HHI group to those

directors are as follows

Year ended 30 June 2009

Basic salaries

allowances Contributions

benefits Share based to provident

in kind Payments fund schemes Total

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

SirGordonYingSheungWU 300 3000 3300

Mr Eddie Ping Chang HO 250 2400 2650

Mr.ThomasieffersonWU 200 1794 12 2006

Mr.BarryChungTatMOK 200 200

Mr Lee Yick NAM 200 200

1150 7194 12 8356

The emoluments paid or payable by the Group other than by the HHI group to the Companys directors are as

follows

Year ended 30 June 2009

Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU 300 1500

Mr Eddie Ping Chang HO 250 1092

Mr Thomas Jefferson WU 200 1560

Mr Josiah Chin Lai KWOK 200 3000

Mr Henry Hin Moh LEE 200 1000

Mr Robert Van un NIEN 200 1430

Mr.GuyManGuyWU 200

LadyWU Ivy Sau Ping KWOK 200

Ms Linda Lai Chuen LOKE 200

Mr Albert Kam Yin YEUNG 200 1638

Mr Barry ChungTat MOK 200 1992

Mr David Yau-gay LUI 200

Mr Camelo Ka Sze LEE 200

Mr Eddie Wing Chuen HO Junior 200 819

Mr Lee Yick NAM 200

Mr William Wing Lam WONG 200 1720

3350 15751

Directors fees

HK$OOO

Basic salaries

allowances Contributions

benefits in Share based to provident

Directors fees kind Payments fund schemes

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Total

HK$OOO

606

242

404

337

242

1800

1342

12 1772

12 3818

1200

12 1884

200

200

200

12 2254

12 2541

200

200

12 1273

200

601 12 2533

2432 84 21617
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June2009

16 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES continued

Directorsemoluments continued

The emoluments paid or payable by the Group including the HHI group to the Companys directors are as follows

Year ended 30 June 2009

Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU

Mr Eddie Ping Chang HO

Mr Thomas Jefferson WU

Mr Josiah Chin Lai KWOK

Mr Henry Hin Moh LEE

Mr Robert Van Jin NIEN

Mr Guy Man GuyWU

LadyWU Ivy Sau Ping KWOK

Ms Linda Lai Chuen LOKE

Mr Albert Kam Yin YEUNG

Mr Barry Chung Tat MOK

Mr David Yau-gay LUI

Mr Camelo Ka Sze LEE

Mr Eddie Wing Chuen HO Junior

Mr Lee Yick NAM

Mr William Wing Lam WONG

200

1638

1992

200

200 819

400

200

4500

5100

3992

24 3778

12 3818

1200

12 1884

200

200

200

12 2254

12 2741

200

200

12 1273

400

12 2533

96 29973

Basic salaries

allowances Contributions

benefits Share based to provident

Directors fees in kind Payments fund schemes

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Total

HK$OOO

4500

3492

3354

3000

1000

1430

600

500

400

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

400

606

242

404

337

242

601

2432

1720

22945
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June 2009

16 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES continued

Directors emoluments continued

Certain directors of the Company are also directors of HHI The emoluments paid or payable by HHI group to those

directors are as follows

Year ended 30 June2008

The emoluments paid or payable by the Group other than by the HHI group to the Companys directors are as

follows

Year ended 30 June 2008

88 32914

Including discretionary bonus of HK$800000

Basic salaries

allowances Contributions

benefits Share based to provident

Directors fees in kind Payments fund schemes Total

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU 300 3000 3300

Mr Eddie Ping Chang HO 250 2400 2650

Mr.ThomasJeffersonWU 200 1794 12 2006

Mr.BarryChungTatMOK 200 200

Mr.LeeYickNAM 200 200

Mr.YukKeunglP 200 200

1350 7194 12 8556

Basic salaries

allowances Contributions

benefits Share based to provident

Directors fees in kind Payments fund schemes

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Total

HK$OOO

SirGordonYingSheungWU 300 1500 1800

Mr.EddiePingChangHO 250 1092 1342

Mr.ThomasJeffersonWU 200 1560 12 1772

Mr.JosiahChinLaiKWOK 200 3000 2338 12 5550

Mr.HenryHinMohLEE 200 1000 1200

Mr.RobertVanJinNlEN 200 1430 935 12 2577

Mr Guy Man GuyWU 200 200

LadyWU Ivy Sau Ping KWOK 200 200

Ms Linda Lai Chuen LOKE 200 200

Mr.AlbertKamYinYEUNG 200 1638 1559 12 3409

Mr.BarryChungTatMOK 200 1992 2205 12 4409

Mr.DavidYau-gayLUl 200 200

Mr.CameloKaSzeLEE 200 200

Mr.AndyLeeMingCHEUNG 60 1444 2750 4258

Mr Eddie Wing Chuen HO Junior 200 819 935 12 1966

Mr.LeeYickNAM 200 200

Mr William Wing Lam WONG 200 1720 1299 12 3231

Mr.YukKeunglP 200 200

3610 17195 12021
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June2009

16 EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES continued

Directors emoluments continued

The emoluments paid or payable by the Group including the HHI group to the Companys directors are as follows

Year ended 30 June2008

Sir Gordon Ying Sheung WU
Mr Eddie Ping Chang HO

Mr Thomas Jefferson WU
Mr Josiah Chin Lai KWOK

Mr Henry Hin Moh LEE

Mr Robert Van Jin NIEN

Mr Guy Man GuyWU

LadyWU Ivy Sau Ping KWOK

Ms Linda Lai Chuen LOKE

Mr Albert Kam Yin YEUNG

Mr Barry Chung Tat MOK

Mr David Yau-gay LUI

Mr Camelo Ka Sze LEE

Mr Andy Lee Ming CHEUNG

Mr Eddie Wing Chuen HO Junior

Mr Lee Yick NAM

Mr William Wing Lam WONG

Mr Yuk Keung IP

4500

3492

3354

3000

1000

1430

1638

1992

1444
819

1720 1299

5100

3992

24 3778

12 5550

1200

12 2577

200

200

200

12 3409

12 4609

200

200

4258

12 1966

400

12 3231

400

Mr Andy Lee Ming CHEUNG resigned as an executive director of the Company with effect from 18 October 2007

Mr Yuk Keung IP was appointed and resigned as an independent non-executive director of the Company with

effect from 13 August 2007 and 29 February 2008 respectively

Other than fees of HK$800000 2008 HK$1200000 paid or payable to the independent non-executive directors

which have been included above no remuneration was paid or is payable to such directors

Highest paid employees emoluments

The five individuals in the Group with the highest emoluments are the directors of the Company and details of

their emoluments have been disclosed above

Basic salaries

allowances Contributions

benefits Share based to provident

Directors fees in kind Payments fund schemes Total

HK$OOO HK$oOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

600

500

400

200

200

200

200

200

200

200

400

200

200

60

200

400

200

400

2338

935

1559

2205

2750

935

Including discretionary bonus of HK$800000

4960 24389 12021 100 41470
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June 2009

17 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Investment properties at fair value

The Group

2008

HK$OOO

2009

HK$OOO

At beginning of the year

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiary Note

Reclassified from to

properties under development and prepaid land

lease payments Note

property plant and equipment and prepaid land

lease payments Note

Gain recognised on transfer of property to investment properties

upon completion of development

Gain arising from changes in fair value of investment properties

At end of the year

6870499 8031300

326604 35159

210000

137578 322042

54877 79007

510847

209359

8031300 9239700

All of the Groups property interests held under operating leases to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation purposes are

measured using the fair value model and are classified and accounted for as investment properties

During the year ended 30 June 2009 the Group acquired investment properties of HK$210 million through the acquisition of

subsidiary from certain directors of the Company details of the acquisition are disclosed in note 38

The development of property of the Group was completed during the year Such property which is held to earn rentals and/or

for capital appreciation purposes has been reclassified from properties under development and prepaid land lease payments

with total carrying amounts of HK$322 million 2008 HK$138 million to investment properties Gain recognised on transfer of

completed property to investment properties amounting to HK$511 million 2008 HK$371 million has been recognised in the

consolidated income statement of the Group for the current year

During the year ended 30 June 2009 certain investment properties with an aggregate fair value of HK$79 million were

reclassified to property plant and equipment

During the year ended 30 June 2008 certain properties with an aggregate fair value of HK$55 million were reclassified to

investment properties from property plant and equipment and prepaid land lease payments The difference between the fair

value of these properties and their carrying value at the date of transfer amounting to HK$13 million has been dealt with in

property revaluation reserve

The fair value of the Groups investment properties at 30 June 2009 has been arrived at on the basis of valuation carried out on

that date by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited DTZ an independent firm of professional property valuers not connected to

the Group For office premises serviced apartments car parks and retail outlets the valuation is arrived at by using direct

comparison method by making reference to comparable sales transactions as available in the relevant market or where

appropriate by capitalising the rental income derived from the existing tenancies with due provision for the reversionary

income potential of the properties For convention and exhibition venue the valuation is arrived at by capitalising the estimated

annual net income and based on valuers opinion as to the future trading potential and level of turnover likely to be achieved

371408

270334

The Groups investment properties comprise

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Land and buildings in Hong Kong on

Long leases 4029000 5184800

Medium-term leases 4002300 4054900

8031300 9239700

Notes
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For the year ended 30 June 2009

18 PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and buildings in

Hong Kong

Hotel Other Other

property properties assets Total

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

TheGroup
COST

At July2007 369543 179184 339659 888386

Additions 21028 74301 95329

Reclassified to investment properties 35694 35694

Disposals 5794 5794

At 30 June 2008 369543 164518 408166 942227

Additions 684 57073 57757

Transfer from investment properties 79007 79007

Disposals 10736 10736

At 30 June 2009 369543 244209 454503 1068255

DEPRECIATION

At July2007 118255 54314 267301 439870

Provided for the year 7391 3461 25743 36595

Eliminated on reclassification 9511 9511
Eliminated on disposals 5100 5100

At 30 June 2008 125646 48264 287944 461854

Provided for the year 7391 4602 34688 46681

Eliminated on disposals 10317 10317

At3OJune2009 133037 52866 312315 498218

CARRYING VALUES

At 30 June 2008 243897 116254 120222 480373

At3OJune2009 236506 191343 142188 570037

An analysis of the carrying values of the land and buildings in Hong Kong is as follows

The Group

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Hotel property on land under medium-term leases 243897 236506

Other properties on land under

Long leases 15494 93155

Medium-term leases 100760 98188

116254 191343

The above items of property plant and equipment are depreciated over their estimated useful lives from the date on

which they become available for their intended use and after taking into account their estimated residual value using

the straight-line method as follows

Category of assets Estimated useful lives

Buildings 50 years or the remaining term of the lease of the land on which

the buildings are located whichever is shorter

Other assets to 10 years
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19 PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

The Group

20

2008

HK$OOO

2009

HK$OOO

The Groups prepaid land lease payments comprise

Leasehold land in Hong Kong on

Long leases 863671 806710

Medium-term leases 16320 113347

979991 920057

Analysed for reporting purposes as

Non-current asset 969341 909485

Current asset 10650 10572

979991 920057

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are set out in note 47

21 AMOUNTS DUE FROM SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from subsidiaries classified under non-current assets are interest free unsecured and with no fixed

repayment terms except for the aggregate principal amount of HK$914 million 2008 HK$724 million which are

repayable in 2013 In the opinion of the directors based on their assessment as at 30 June 2009 of the estimated future

cash flows from the subsidiaries the amounts due from subsidiaries will not be repayable within one year
from the

balance sheet date accordingly these amounts are classified as non-current The effective interest rate on the amounts

due from subsidiaries in respect of the year ranged from 1.5% to 2.4% 2008 3.3% to 5.8% per annum representing the

borrowing rates of the relevant subsidiaries

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The Company

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Unlisted shares

At cost less impairment 870552 895426

Shares listed in Hong Kong at cost 53948

924500 895426

Market value of listed shares 52082
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22 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

The Group

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

COST

At beginning of the year 335653 442648

Additions 221361 209494

Transfer to investment properties 114366 270359

At end of the year 442648 381783

Included in the cost of properties under development is net interest capitalised totalling HK$31.2 million 2008 HK$55.4

million

23 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES

The Group

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated

Expressway projects in the PRC

Unlisted investments at cost

Registered capital contribution 1089843 1201821

Additional cost of investments 2756569 2745309

3846412 3947130

Share of post-acquisition reserves 1736979 2873159

Less Accumulated amortisation 698316 782922

4885075 6037367

Power plant project in the PRC

Unlisted investment at cost

Registered capital contribution 631867 631867

Share of post-acquisition reserves 32411 23711

664278 655578

Other unlisted investments 1459 12053

5560812 6704998

As referred to in note the Group disposed of certain of its jointly controlled entities during the year ended 30 June

2008
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23 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES continued

Particulars of the Groups principal jointly controlled entities at 30 June 2009 are as follows

Proportion of

issued/registered

Issued capital capital held

Name of company registered capital Principal activity by the Group

Incorporated in Hong Kong

Hong Kong Bowling City Limited 10250000 Operation of bowling center 50%

shares of

HK$1 each

10250000

shares of

HK$1 each

Grand Site Development Limited shares of HK$1 each Development and property investment 50%

Established in the PRC

GuangzhouShenzhenZhuhai Nil Note Development operation and management Not applicable

Superhighway Company Limited of an expressway

Guangdong GuangzhouZhuhai RMB2303000000 Development operation and management 50%

West Superhighway Company of an expressway

Limited

West Route JV

SEC Hopewell Power Heyuan RMB1 560000000 Development and operation of 40%

Co Ltd power plant

Details of the principal jointly controlled entities at the balance sheet date are as follows

Phase of the Guangzhou-Shenzhen-Zhuhai Superhighway GS Superhighway
The GS Superhighway is undertaken by GS Superhighway JV joint venture company established in the PRC The

operation period is 30 years from the GS Superhighways official opening date on July 1997 The Groups

entitlement to the profit of the toll operations of the GS Superhighway JV is 50% for the initial ten years 48% for

the next ten years and 45% for the last ten years of the operation period At the end of the operation period all the

immovable assets and facilities of GS Superhighway JV will be reverted to the PRC joint venture partner without

compensation

The Group is entitled to the repayment of the total registered capital of HK$702 million contributed by the Group

to GS Superhighway JV The registered capital of HK$702 million and the expenditure for the construction of GS

Superhighway to the extent of RMB725 million approximately HK$736 million previously incurred by the Group

have been repaid to the Group by GS Superhighway JV during the year ended 30 June 2008
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23 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES continued

Western Delta Route

West Route JV is established to undertake the development operation and management of an expressway linking

Guangzhou Zhongshan and Zhuhai Western Delta Route Phase of Western Delta Route Phase West was

officially opened on 30 April 2004 and the operation period for Phase West is 30 years commencing from 17

September 2003 The total investment for the Phase West is RMB1 680 million 35% of which was funded by the

registered capital of West Route JV amounting to RMB588 million equivalent to approximately HK$669 million

which had been contributed by the Group and the PRC joint venture partner of West Route JV in equal share i.e

each to contribute RMB294 million

The estimated total investment for the Phase II of Western Delta Route Phase II West is RMB4900 million 35%

of which was funded by an increase in the registered capital of West Route JV by RMB1715 million in total

contributed by the Group and the PRC joint venture partner of West Route JV in equal share The expiration date of

the joint venture co-operation period for the West Route JV has been extended from 16 September 2033 to 16

September 2038 As at 30 June 2009 the approved registered capital of West Route JV was RMB2303 million

The Group is entitled to 50% of the distributable profits from operation of West Route JV At the end of the joint

venture co-operation period all the immovable assets and facilities of West Route JV will be reverted to the

relevant PRC government authority which regulates transportation without compensation The registered capital

contributions are required to be repaid to both the Group and PRC joint venture partner The repayments are

required to be approved by the board of directors of West Route JV

In September 2005 the Group conditionally amended the agreements with the PRC joint venture partner of West

Route JV for the investment in and the planning design development and operation of the Phase Ill of Western

Delta Route Phase III West through West Route JV the 2005 Phase Ill Amendment Agreements Subject to

approval of the relevant PRC authorities the estimated total investment for Phase III West is RMB3260 million 35%

of which is to be funded by an increase in the registered capital of West Route JV by RMB1 41 million in total to be

contributed by the Group and the PRC joint venture partner of West Route JV in equal share i.e each to contribute

RMB57O.5 million

On September 2008 the Group entered into amendment agreements in relation to Phase Ill West with the PRC

joint venture partner to adjust the total investment for Phase III West to RMB5600 million instead of RMB3260

million as contemplated under the 2005 Phase Ill Amendment Agreements the 2008 Phase Ill Amendment

Agreements which effectively replaced the 2005 Phase Ill Amendment Agreements 35% of the adjusted total

investment will be funded by an increase in the registered capital of West Route JV by RMB1960 million to be

contributed by the Group and the PRC joint venture partner in equal share The adjusted total capital contribution

thereon to be made by the Group to West Route JV for the development of Phase Ill West will be RMB98O million

instead of RMBS7O.5 million as contemplated under the 2005 Phase III Amendment Agreements The 2008 Phase III

Amendment Agreements have been approved by the shareholders of the Company and HHI during the year

ended 30 June 2009 and are being processed by the relevant PRC authorities as at the date of this report

On September 2008 the Group entered into amendment agreements in relation to Phase II West with the PRC

joint venture partner subject to the approval of the Companys and HHIs shareholders and the relevant PRC

authorities to increase the total investment for Phase II West by RMB2300 million to RMB7200 million 35% of the

increase in total investment will be funded by an increase in the registered capital of West Route JV by RMB8O5

million to be contributed by the Group and the PRC joint venture partner in equal share The additional capital

contribution thereon to be made by the Group to West Route JV for the development of Phase II West is RMB4O3

million The amendment agreements have been approved by the shareholders of the Company and HHI during

the year ended 30 June 2009 and are being processed by the relevant PRC authorities as at the date of this report

After obtaining approval from the relevant PRC authorities the registered capital of West Route JV will be

RMB5068 million
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23 INTERESTS IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITIES continued

Power plant project in Heyuan City of Guangdong Province the PRC

Pursuant to co-operation agreement entered into between the Group and PRC enterprise joint venture

company SEC Hopewell Power Heyuan Co Ltd Heyuan Power JV was established in the PRC during the

year ended 30 June 2008 for the joint development of 2X600 MW power plant in Heyuan City of Guangdong

Province the PRC The operation period of Heyuan Power JV is 30 years from 14 September 2007 the date of its

establishment and the Group is entitled to 40% of the results from the operation of the power plant

The summarised financial information in respect of the Groups share of the assets liabilities income and expenses of its

jointly controlled entities which are accounted for using the equity method is set out below

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Current assets 377184 418588

Non-current assets 9626604 11193563

Current liabilities 1847279 1283895

Non-current liabilities 5150799 5914741

Income 3468652 4196917

Expenses 2242975 2178406

Currency risk exposure associated with the jointly controlled entities of the Group
As at 30 June 2009 and 2008 certain jointly controlled entities of the Group had outstanding bank loans denominated

in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars that are not the functional currency of those jointly controlled entities

i.e RMB The results of the Groups jointly controlled entities are accounted for using the equity method of accounting

such that the foreign currency risk associated with foreign currency borrowings exposed by the jointly controlled

entities is reflected in the share of results of jointly controlled entities Therefore if exchange rate of RMB against Hong

Kong dollars/United States dollars had been strengthened/weakened by 5% the share of profits of the related jointly

controlled entities for the current year would increase/decrease by HK$133.9 million 2008 would increase/decrease by

HK$140.8 million The sensitivity analyses assumed the amounts outstanding at the balance sheet date were

outstanding for the whole year and held constant throughout the financial
year

Taking into account both the Groups foreign currency risk as explained in note 46bi and the above foreign currency

risk exposed by the jointly controlled entities the Groups profit for the current year
would increase/decrease by HK$40.5

million 2008 would increase/decrease by HK$214.7 million if exchange rate of RMB against Hong Kong dollars/United

States dollars had been strengthened/weakened by 5%

24 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

The Group

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Cost of investments unlisted 505 305

Share of post-acquisition profits and reserves net of dividends received 22328 26737

22833 27042
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24 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES continued

The Company

2008

HK$OOO

2009

HK$OOO

The fair values of the listed equity securities have been determined by reference to the bid prices quoted on the relevant

stock exchanges

The unlisted equity investments are measured at cost because the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the

range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that their fair value cannot be measured reliably

25

Unlisted shares at cost 401 401

Particulars of the principal associates are set out in note 48

The summarised financial information in respect of the Groups associates is set out below

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Total assets 83982 84439

Total liabilities 24623 24004

Net assets 59359 60435

Groups share of net assets of associates 22833 27042

Revenue 18071 16468

Profit for the year 7563 8525

Groups share of profits of associates for the year 6743 6858

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

The Group

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Equity securities at fair value

Listed in Hong Kong 20350

Listed outside Hong Kong 41549 30121

61899 30121

Unlisted equity investments at cost 3197 3197

65096 33318

Market value of listed equity securities 61899 30121

The Company

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Unlisted equity investments at cost 3000 3000
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26 LOAN TO JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

At 30 June 2008 the loan to jointly controlled entity carried interest chargeable at Hong Kong prime rate and was

unsecured and repaid out of the net cash surplus from the operations of the jointly controlled entity

At 30 June 2009 the loan to jointly controlled entity is unsecured interest free and not expected to be repayable

within one year after the balance sheet date

27 INVENTORIES

The Group

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Hotel and restaurant inventories 18457 15333

The cost of inventories recognised as an expense during the year amounted to HK$124646000 2008 HK$130091000

28 STOCK OF PROPERTIES

The Group

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Properties for sale

Under development 364525 407596

Completed 17593 96254

382118 503850

The cost of properties recognised as an expense during the year amounted to HK$1930000 2008 HK$8227000

The properties under development are not expected to be substantially realised within one year from the balance sheet

date

29 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Other than rentals receivable which are payable upon presentation of invoices the Group allows an average credit

period of 15 to 60 days to its trade customers

The following is an analysis of trade and other receivables net of allowances for doubtful debts at the balance sheet

date

The Group

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Receivables aged

030 days 18039 19578

3160 days 8005 4815

Over 60 days 7232 5277

33276 29670

Less Allowance for doubtful debts 1136 751

32140 28919

Interest receivable on bank deposits 4769 192

Dividend receivable from jointly controlled entity 1080454

1117363 29111
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29 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES continued

The Group has provided fully for all trade receivables past due beyond 90 days because based on historical experience

it is not probable that such receivables are recoverable

Included in the Groups trade receivable balance are debtors with carrying amount of HK$13027000 2008

HK$15578000 which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group has not provided for impairment loss The

Group does not hold any collateral over these balances

Ageing of trade receivables which are past due but not impaired

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

030 days 13071 11687

3160 days 2277 804

Over 60 days 230 536

Total 15578 13027

Movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Balance at beginning of the year 1670 1136

Reversal of impairment losses 449 184

Amounts written off as uncollectible 85 201

Balance at end of the year 1136 751

30 BANK BALANCES AND CASH

TheGroup
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and bank deposits with maturity of three months or less which

carry interest at market rates ranged from 0.02% for HK$ deposits to 1.17% for RMB deposits 2008 0.8% to 2.2% per

annum

Included in bank balances and cash are bank deposits held by subsidiaries amounting to approximately RMB1 11 million

2008 RMB334 million US$128 million 2008 US$391 million and HK$1998 million 2008 HK$3 million which are

denominated in currencies other than the functional currencies of the respective subsidiaries

The Company
Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Company and bank deposits with maturity of three months or less

which carry interest at market rates ranged from 0.02% to 0.29% 2008 0.02% to 2.2% per annum

Included in bank balances and cash are bank deposit amounting to approximately US$18 million at 30 June 2009 which

was denominated in currency
other than the functional currency of the Company
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31 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

The following is an analysis of trade and other payables outstanding at the balance sheet date

The Group

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Payables due

030 days 226141 147591

3160 days 5109 2561

Over6Odays 79299 85317

310549 235469

Retentions payable 36004 36309
Accrued construction costs 127148 82219
Accrued long service payment and leave pay 15299 16554

489000 370551

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all payables are within the credit timeframe

Of the retention payable an amount of HK$20997000 2008 HK$15969000 is due beyond twelve months

32 AMOUNTS DUE TO ASSOCIATES AND JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

TheGroup
The amount due to jointly controlled entity is unsecured interest free and repayable on demand

The Group and the Company
The amounts due to associates are unsecured interest free and repayable on demand

33 AMOUNTS DUE FROM/TO SUBSIDIARIES

The amounts due from subsidiaries classified under current assets and the amounts due to subsidiaries are both

unsecured interest free and repayable within one year or on demand

34 AMOUNT DUE TO MINORITY SHAREHOLDER OF SUBSIDIARY

The amount due to minority shareholder of subsidiary is interest-free and unsecured

The principal amount due to the minority shareholder of HK$79 million had been
initially

reduced to its present value of

HK$60 million based on managements estimates of future cash payments with corresponding adjustment of

approximately HK$19 million which was regarded as deemed contribution from the minority shareholder during the

year ended 30 June 2008 The effective interest rate adopted for measurement at fair value at initial recognition of the

amount due to minority shareholder of subsidiary in respect of the year is 3.25% representing the borrowing rate of

the subsidiary
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35 SHARE CAPITAL

Number of shares Nominal value

2008 2009 2008 2009

000 000 HK$OOO HK$OOO

The Group and the Company

Ordinary shares of HK$2.50 each

Authorised 1200000 1200000 3000000 3000000

Issued and fully paid

At beginning of the year 899383 892322 2248458 2230806

Issued during the year 1413 2262 3533 5655

Repurchased during the year 8474 15635 21185 39088

At end of the year 892322 878949 2230806 2197373

During the year ended 30 June 2009 the Company issued 1900000 and 362000 ordinary shares at the subscription

prices of HK$19.94 each and HK$22.44 each respectively for total cash consideration of HK$46 million upon the

exercise of the share options previously granted

During the year
ended 30 June 2008 the Company issued 200000 100000 and 1113400 ordinary shares at

subscription price of HK$17.10 each HK$19.94 each and HK$22.44 each respectively for total cash consideration of

HK$30 million upon the exercise of the share options previously granted

These shares rank paripassu in all respects with the existing ordinary shares

During the year the Company repurchased 15635000 2008 8474000 ordinary shares of the Company on the Hong

Kong Stock Exchange as follows

Total

consideration paid

Number of including

ordinary shares Purchase price per share transaction

Month repurchased Highest Lowest costs

000 HK$ HK$ HK$OOO

2009

July2008 743 27.35 25.65 19619

August2008 1159 30.10 27.80 33957

September2008 1637 28.10 25.15 44425

October 2008 4080 26.40 19.60 88440

November 2008 2438 23.85 18.80 51583

December 2008 2806 25.00 19.16 63880

January2009 1447 25.00 21.50 33418

April2009 1325 19.98 19.46 26146

15635 361468

2008

November2007 62 34.65 33.65 2130

December2007 20 33.30 33.30 668

January2008 1712 35.50 30.70 55966

March 2008 3767 32.50 26.15 10594

April 2008 1806 34.05 29.40 56343

May2008 161 33.90 32.85 5416

June 2008 946 32.50 28.25 28177

8474 259294

These repurchases were effected by the directors pursuant to the mandate from the shareholders with view to

benefiting the shareholders as whole by the enhancement of the earnings per share of the Group

At 30 June 2009 the Companys 72000 2008 394000 issued shares with an aggregate nominal value of HK$180000

2008 HK$985000 were held by HHL Employees Share Award Scheme Trust see note on share award scheme below

In accordance with the trust deed of the HHL Employees Share Award Scheme Trust the relevant trustee shall not

exercise the voting rights attached to such shares
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35 SHARE CAPITAL continued

Share option schemes
The Company
In 2003 the Company adopted share option scheme HHL 2003 Scheme which is effective for period of 10

years The principal purpose of this scheme is to provide incentives to directors and any eligible persons the Board

may approve from time to time The Board is authorised under the share option scheme to grant options to

executive directors and employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries and persons specified in the scheme

document to subscribe for shares in the Company

Under the HHL 2003 Scheme options granted must be taken up within 14 days from the date of the offer letter

upon the payment of HK$1 per each grant of option payable as consideration on acceptance which is recognised

in the consolidated income statement when received

The following table discloses details of share options which were granted by the Company at nominal

consideration and movements in such holdings

Number of shares under
options granted

Weighted

average

share price

Subscription Outstanding at
Movements during the year At30 June2008

at the date

Date of grant price per share July2007 Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Exercisable of exercise

HK$ HK$

Directors

September 2004 17.10 200000 200000 30.85

September 2005 19.94 2000000 100000 1900000 1900000 2900

lOOctober2006 22.44 288000 288000 57600 N/A

2488000 300000 2188000 1957600

Employees

10 October 2006 22.44 8416000 1113400 614400 6688200 569800 35.03

15 November2007 36.10 5248000 5248000 N/A

10904000 5248000 1413400 614400 14124200 2527400

Weighted average

exercise
price HK$21.88 HK$36.10 HK$21.51 HK2244 HK$27.18 HK$20.56

Number of shares under options granted

Weighted

average

share
price

Subscription Outstanding at Movements during the year At 30 June2009 at the date

Date of grant price per share July2008 Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Exercisable of exercise

HK$ HK$

Directors

2September2005 19.94 1900000 1900000 24.73

lOOctober2006 2244 288000 288000 115200 N/A

2188000 1900000 288000 115200

Employees

10 October 2006 22.44 6688200 362000 736000 5590200 1654200 24.62

15 November2007 36.10 5248000 176000 5072000 1014400 N/A

24Ju1y2008 26.35 1788000 1788000 N/A

11 March2009 21.45 1760000 1760000 N/A

14124200 3548000 2262000 912000 14498200 2783800

Weighted average

exercise price HK$27.18 HK$23.92 HK$20.34 HK$25.08 HK$27.58 HK$27.42

The dates of grant of options referred to above represent the dates on which the options were accepted by the

grantees
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35 SHARE CAPITAL continued

Share option schemes continued

The Company continued

The followings are the particulars of share options granted under HHL 2003 Scheme

Number of Exercise price

share options Vesting period Exercisable period per share

September 2004

September 2005

September 2005

10 October 2006

10 October 2006

10 October 2006

10 October 2006

10 October 2006

15 November 2007

15 November 2007

15 November 2007

15 November 2007

15 November 2007

24 July 2008

24July2008

24 July 2008

24 July 2008

24 July 2008

11 March2009

11 March 2009

11 March2009

11 March2009

11 March2009

1250000 September 2005

to March 2006

1250000 September 2005 to

March 2007

1792000 10 October 2006 to

31 October 2007

1792000 10 October 2006 to

31 October 2008

1792000 10 October 2006 to

31 October 2009

1792000 10 October 2006 to

31 October2010

1792000 10 October 2006 to

31 October2011

1049600 15 November 2007 to

30 November 2008

1049600 15 November 2007 to

30 November 2009

1049600 15 November 2007 to

30 November 2010

1049600 15 November 2007 to

3ONovember2Oll

1049600 15 November 2007 to

3ONovember2Ol2

357600 24July2008 to 31 July2009

357600 24July2008 to 31 July2010

357600 24July2008to31 July2011

357600 24July2008to3l July2012

357600 24July2008to31 July2013

352000 11 March 2009to 17 March 2010

352000 11 March 2009 to 17 March 2011

352000 11 March 2009to 17 March 2012

352000 11 March 2009 to 17 March 2013

352000 11 March 2009 to 17 March 2014

Exercisable within three years
17.10

from the date of grant

March 2006 to March 2009 19.94

March 2007 to March 2009 19.94

November 2007 to

31 October2013

November 2008 to

31 October2013

November 2009 to

31 October2013

November 2010 to

31 October2013

November 2011 to

31 October2013

December 2008 to

30 November 2014

December 2009 to

30 November 2014

December20l0to

30 November 2014

December 2011 to

30 November 2014

December 2012 to

30 November2014

August 2009 to 31 July2015

August 2OlOto 31 July2015

August2011 to3l July2015

August 2012to31 July2015

August2Ol3to3l July2015

l8March2OlOto 17 March 2016

l8March2Oll tol7March2Ol6

l8March2Ol2to l7March2Ol6

l8March2Ol3to l7March2Ol6

l8March2Ol4to l7March 2016

Date of Grant

2700000

HK$

22.44

22.44

22.44

2244

22.44

3610

36.10

36.10

36.10

36.10

26.35

26.35

26.35

26.35

26.35

21.45

21.45

21.45

2145

21.45
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35 SHARE CAPITAL continued

Share option schemes continued

The Company continued

Share option expenses charged to the consolidated income statement are based on valuation determined using

the Binomial model Share options granted were valued based on the following assumptions

Closing

Number of Fair values share price Expected Suboptimal

options
of

options at date Exercise Expected Risk-free dividend exercise

Date of grant granted granted of grant price volatility Option life rate yield factor

HK$ HK$ HK$

2September200s 2500000 6819000 19.60 19.94 23.30%
3.4years

3.660% 4.10%

lOOctober2006 8960000 43981000 22.25 22.44 26.00% 7years 3.956% 3.80%

l5November2007 5248000 43669000 35.10 36.10 33.00% 7years 3.384% 4.70%

24July2008 1788000 13475000 26.25 26.35 33.54% 7years 3.598% 3.01% 1.61

11 March2009 1760000 9142000 21.45 21.45 34.37% 7years 1.872% 4.53% 2.2

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the Companys share price over previous

year The effects of time to vest non-transferability exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations have been

taken into account in the model The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share

options are based on managements best estimate The value of share options varies with different variables of

certain subjective assumptions

The Group recognised in the total expense of HK$25619000 for the year 2008 HK$24488000 in relation to share

options granted by the Company

HHI

share option scheme HHI Scheme was adopted by HHI pursuant to the written resolutions of the shareholders

of HHI passed on 16 July 2003 and approved by the shareholders of the Company at an extraordinary general

meeting held on 16 July 2003 The HHI Scheme shall be valid and effective for period of 10 years and the

principal purpose of which is to provide incentives to directors and any eligible persons the Board of HHI may

approve from time to time The Board of HHI is authorised to grant options under the HHI Scheme to executive

directors and employees of the Company HHI or any of its subsidiaries and persons specified in the scheme

document to subscribe for shares in HHI

Options granted must be taken up within 28 days from the date of the offer letter upon payment of HK$1 per each

grant of option payable as consideration on acceptance which is recognised in the consolidated income

statement when received
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35 SHARE CAPITAL continued

Share option schemes continued

HHI continued

The following table discloses the details of share options granted under the HHI Scheme by HHI to its directors and

employees who are not directors of the Company at nominal consideration

Number of shares under options granted

Weighted

average

share
price

Subscription Outstanding at
Movements during the year At30 June 2008 at the date

Date of grant price per share July2007 Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Exercisable of exercise

HK$ HK$

17 October 2006 5.858 6200000 152000 1120000 4928000 1088000 6.65

19 November 2007 6.746 760000 760000 N/A

6200000 760000 152000 1120000 5688000 1088000

Weighted average

exercise price HK$5858 HK$6.746 HK$5858 HK$5858 HK$5977 HK$5858

Number of shares under options granted

Weighted

average

share price

Subscription Outstanding at Movements during the year At 30 June 2009 at the date

Date of grant price pershare July2008 Granted Exercised Lapsed Outstanding Exercisable of exercise

HK$ HK$

l7October2006 5.858 4928000 488000 4440000 1776000 N/A

l9November2007 6.746 760000 760000 152000 N/A

24Ju1y 2008 5.800 800000 400000 400000 N/A

11 March 2009 4.470 400000 400000 N/A

5688000 1200000 1288000 5600000 1928000

Weighted average

exercise price HK$5.977 HK$5.357 N/A HK$5409 HK$5.974 HK$5.928
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35 SHARE CAPITAL continued

Share option schemes continued

HHI continued

The followings are the particulars of share options granted under HHI Scheme

share options Vesting period

Exercise price

per share

HK$

19 November 2007

19 November 2007

24 July 2008

24 July 2008

24July2008

24Ju1y2008

24 July 2008

11 March 2009

11 March 2009

11 March 2009

11 March 2009

11 March 2009

1240000 December 2006 to

30 November 2007

1240000 December 2006 to

30 November 2008

1240000 December 2006 to

30 November 2009

1240000 December 2006 to

30 November 2010

1240000 December 2006 to

30 November 2011

152000 19 November 2007 to

30 November 2008

152000 19 November 2007 to

30 November 2009

152000 19 November 2007 to

30 November 2010

152000 19 November 2007 to

30 November 2011

152000 19 November 2007 to

30 November2012

160000 August2008to3l July2009

160000 August 2008 to 31 July2010

160000 August 2008 to 31 July2011

160000 August 2008 to 31 July2012

160000 August 2008 to 31 July 2013

80000 18 March 2009 to 17 March 2010

80000 18 March 2009 to 17 March 2011

80000 18 March 2009 to 17 March 2012

80000 18 March 2009 to 17 March 2013

80000 18 March 2009 to 17 March 2014

December 2007 to

30 November 2013

December 2008 to

30 November2013

December 2009 to

30 November 2013

December 2010 to

30 November 2013

December 2011 to

30 November 2013

December 2008 to

30 November2014

December 2009 to

30 November 2014

December20l0to

30 November 2014

December 2011 to

30 November 2014

December 2012 to

30 November2014

August 2009to 31 July2015

August 2OlOto 31 July2015

August2011 to3l July2015

August 2012 to 31 July2015

August 2013 to 31 July2015

18 March 2OlOto 17 March 2016

l8March2Oll tol7March2Ol6

18 March 2012to 17 March 2016

18 March 2013 to 17 March 2016

18 March 2014to 17 March 2016

The above 400000 share options with exercise price at HK$4.470 per share were granted and lapsed in the

financial year ended 30 June 2009 There was no financial impact to the consolidated financial statements of the

Group and no valuation on these share options was performed

Share option expenses charged to the consolidated income statement are based on valuation determined using

the Binomial model Share options granted were valued based on the following assumptions

Closing

Date of Grant

Number of

Exercisable period

17 October 2006

17 October 2006

l7October2006

l7October2006

l7October2006

19 November 2007

19 November 2007

19 November 2007

5.858

5.858

5.858

5.858

5858

6.746

6746

6.746

6.746

6.746

5.800

5.800

5.800

5.800

5.800

4470

4470

4.470

4.470

4.470

Number of Fair values share price Expected Suboptimal

options of options at date Exercise Expected Risk-free dividend exercise

Date of grant granted granted of grant price volatility Option life rate yield factor

HK$ HK$ HK$

l7October2006 6200000 5814000 5.70 5.858 23.00% 7years 3.969% 4.75%

l9November2007 760000 705000 6.55 6.746 23.83% 7years 3.330% 5.78%

24July2008 800000 843000 5.80 5.800 25.94% 7years 3.600% 4.66% 1.31
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35 SHARE CAPITAL continued

Share option schemes continued

HHI continued

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volatility of the HHIs share price over previous year The

effects of time to vest non-transferability exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations have been taken

into account in the model The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the share options

are based on managements best estimate The value of share options varies with different variables of certain

subjective assumptions

The Group recognised the total expense of HK$1038000 for the year 2008 HK$2125000 in relation to share

options granted by HHI

Share award scheme

The Company
On 25 January 2007 an employees share award scheme HHL Share Award Scheme was adopted by the

Company The HHL Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for period of 15 years commencing from 25

January 2007 Pursuant to the rules of the HHL Share Award Scheme the Group has set up trust HHL Employees

Share Award Scheme Trust for the purpose of administering the HHL Share Award Scheme and holding the

awarded shares before they vest

During the year ended 30 June 2007 total of 3374000 shares in the Company were awarded to certain directors

of the Company at no consideration No shares were awarded in both years presented The awardees shall not

dispose of nor enter into any agreement to dispose of the relevant awarded shares in the 12-month period

commencing on the vesting date thereof Details of the movements of shares of the Company awarded are as

follows

Movements

Outstanding at during the year Outstanding at

Vesting date July2007 Vested Lapsed 30 June2008

Directors

25 January 2008 358000 322000 36000

25 January2009 358000 36000 322000

716000 322000 72000 322000

Weighted average fair value HK$24.22 HK$25.21 HK$24.22 HK$23.22

Movements

Outstanding at during the year Outstanding at

Vesting date July2008 Vested Lapsed 30 June 2009

Directors

2SJanuary2009 322000 322000

Weighted average fair value HK$23.22 HK$23.22 N/A N/A

During the year ended 30 June 2007 3374000 shares of the Company were acquired at total cost of

HK$102109000

The total fair value of the awarded shares determined at the date of grant was HK$87445000 of which

HK$2169000 2008 HK$7799000 was recognised as an expense for the year
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35 SHARE CAPITAL continued

Share award scheme continued

The Company continued

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of awarded shares

Closing share price at date of grant HK$28.65

Option life 13 years

Expected volatility

First year 22.15%

Second year 20.26%

Third year 25.28%

Expected dividend yield 2.60%

Risk free rate

First year
3.89%

Second year
3.92%

Third year
3.93%

The fair value of the awarded shares was determined by reference to the closing share price at date of grant after

deductions of the present value of foregone dividend during the vesting period and the fair value of put option in

relation to the restricted period of the shares which was determined by using the Black-Scholes option pricing

model

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the awarded shares are based on the directors

best estimate The value of awarded shares varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions

HHI

On 25 January 2007 an employees share award scheme HHI Share Award Scheme was adopted by HHI The HHI

Share Award Scheme is valid and effective for period of 15 years commencing from 25 January 2007 Pursuant to

the rules of the HHI Share Award Scheme HHI has set up trust HHI Employees Share Award Scheme Trust for the

purpose of administering the HHI Share Award Scheme and holding the awarded shares before they vest

During the year ended 30 June 2007 total of 1940000 shares in HHI had been awarded to director of the

Company and employees of the Group at no consideration No shares in HHI were awarded in both years

presented The awardees shall not dispose of nor enter into any agreement to dispose of the relevant awarded

shares in the 12-month period commencing on the vesting date thereof
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35 SHARE CAPITAL continued

Share award scheme continued

HHI continued

Details of the movements of shares of HHI awarded are as follows

Outstanding at

30 June2008

Closing share price at date of grant

Option life

Expected volatility

First year

Second year

Third year

Expected dividend yield

Risk free rate

First year

Second year

Third year

HK$7.38

13 years

25.18%

21.80%

23.47%

4.36%

3.89%

3.92%

3.93%

Vesting date

Outstanding at

July2007

Movements

during the year

Vested

Employees

25 January 2008 380000 380000

25 January 2009 380000 380000

760000 380000 380000

Weighted average fair value HK$5.94 HK$6.21 HK$5.68

Movements

Outstanding at during the year Outstanding at

Vesting date July2008 Vested 30 June 2009

Employees

25 January 2009 380000 380000

Weighted average fair value HK$5.68 HK$5.68 N/A

During the year ended 30 June 2007 1940000 shares of HHI were acquired at total cost of HK$14129000

The total fair value of the awarded shares determined at the date of grant was HK$12369000 of which

HK$614000 2008 HK$2471000 was recognised as an expense for the year

The following assumptions were used to calculate the fair value of the awarded shares

The fair value of the awarded shares was determined by reference to the closing share price at date of grant after

deductions of the present value of foregone dividend during the vesting period and the fair value of put option in

relation to the restricted period of the shares which was determined by using the Black-Scholes option pricing

model

The variables and assumptions used in computing the fair value of the awarded shares are based on the directors

best estimate The value of awarded share varies with different variables of certain subjective assumptions
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36 SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES

The Group
At butabletoequityholders of the Company

Shares held

Capital P00 Property Investment Share Share forshare Shareoption Shareaword

Share redemption Capital Translation statutorg revaluation revaluation option award award Retained reoerveofa reserve of Minority

premium reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve scheme profts Total subsidiary subnidiory interests Total

HK$008 HK$006 HK$000 HK$000 HK$060 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$060 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

At
July

2007
loriginally

stated 8684344 4748 83010 176114 79529 19056 5626 21668 7891295 16922054 1268 1043 3058754 19983119

Effect of changes in accounting policies

note2 196221 1919301 11015521 1379291 11394811

At
July

2007 restated 8684344 4748 83010 166492 79529 9056 5626 1218681 7799365 16820502 1268 1043 3020825 19843638

Exchange differences on translation of

foandal statements of subsidiaries

joinslycoetrolledendtiesandastociates

as restated 259014 259014 61295 320309

Gain ansing ftosrr changes in fair value of

other properties before reclass0cation

to investment properties note lId 13024 13024 13024

Gain
arising

from changes in fair vulue

ofaeailable-for-saleineestnrents 48174 40174 48174

Deferred tax liabilities air changes in fair value

ofvttserpnoçseetieo 12149 12149 2149

Deferred tax liabilities air charges in fair value

of available-for-sale ineestnents 35901 3590 135901

Net income recognised directly
in equity 259014 10875 44584 314473 61295 375768

Translation reserve realised on disposal

ofajointlycontrolledentity 56025 56025 20893 76918

Investment revaluatioo reserve transferred

to proftor lots on disposal of

available-fur-sale investments 21756 1217561 121756

Reversal of deferred tao liabilities on disposal

ofavailable-for-saleinvestments 3590 3590 3590

Profitfortheyear 5978766 5978766 550124 6528890

Totalrecognisedincomeforttreyear 202989 10875 26418 5978766 6219048 590526 6809574

lstueof shares 32604 5738 26866 26866

Shares issue en peoses 1281 128 128

Repurchaseuf shares 21185 259294 238109 238109

Dividends paid to minority sharehulders 1367297 1367297

Acquisition of additional interest

inssubsidiaty 1295721 29572

Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payments 24488 7799 32287 1552 1804 1240 36883

Change in proft sharing ofajoindy

cortroAed
entity 2535 3106 5641 12086 7727

Conttibusiuefrosn minority shareholders

ofasobsidiary 1034 t034

Deemed contribution from minority

shareholder note34 8990 18990

Shares vested underthe share awatd schenres

oftheGroup 8117 9745 1628 1723 11723

Deemed disposal of interest inasubsidiary 1442 11091 1533

Trsnsfers between reserves 5529 15529

Dividends recognised as distribution

duringtheyearnotet4 12038718 12038718 2038718

At SOJune 2808restated 8716920 25933 83010 366940 81952 10875 26418 37806 5308 11923 lt472962 20815207 2378 1124 3232569 24052278
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36 SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES continued

The Group continued

Attributable Is equhy holders of the Campary

Shoresheld

Capita POt Property lrvestmeat Share Share farshare Share oprior Shareaward

Share redemptior Capitol Trarslatiar statutory revalsatior revaluatiar optiar award award fetoired reaerveaf reserve of Minority

premium reserve reserve reserve reserves reserve reserve reserve reserve scheme prafih
Total subsidiary subsidiary irtereots Total

41 K$000 hKSOOo HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 hK$000 hK$500 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000

Atl Juy200S 8116020 2SS30 83010 SSH9HH 81952 10870 26418 37806 530S 11923 11472962 20816207 2378 1124 3232569 24052278

Oochsnqediff stances on transstion of

foaociolototemeottof subsidiaries

joirnlf
cons ro8sd srtitietandsosociates 39166 39166 2863 42020

loss ahoirgfrorv charges infairvolue

of available-f or sahinvearvents 9910 f9t0 9910

Her asperse rscogrised dirsctly inequity 00166 ff 101 40076 2863 St 059

Investment revaluation nesvrvetransf erred

toproftarots on
disposal

of

available-f artaeinvettments 1873 1873 1873

Profrfvrrhv year 1680851 1680831 336512 1997463

Total recognised scorns sspenoe

fortheyeor 39166 11783 1680851 1820962 313749 1943651

Issue
of shores 47013 6938 40355 40385

Sharsaissus expenses 35 35 30

Repuachats of shores 39088 3614681 322380 322380

Repurchase of HHlthvrss
fry

HHI 10636 10636 27210 37846

Diddendtpaidrnrninoftyoharsholden 1157244 1157244

Acquisition
of additionol interea

inatubtidisry 1203 1203

Recognitianuf equity-settled

share-based
psynrentt

25819 2169 27788 729 432 491 29440

Shares vested underths share award

schemes of the Group 7477 9745 2697 429 1556 783 2768

Fadeitureofveoedohsrvoprion
133 135 133

Transfers between reserves 750741 5000 423 57577

Dividends recognised aadioriburion

during the yeor role 14 4995334 4995334 241108 4754226

t3OJsn 2009 8760198 65021 10010 302780 82375 10875 14633 56467 2178 7001398 17183871 2974 2601477 19790022
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36 SHARE PREMIUM AND RESERVES continued

Shares

held for

Capital Share Share share

Share redemption Capital option award award Retained

premium reserve reserve reserve reserve scheme profits Total

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

The Company

At July 2007 8684344 4748 9872 19056 5626 21668 3120075 11822053

Profit for the year and

total income recognised

fortheyear 6338310 6338310

Issue of shares 32604 5738 26866

Shares issue expenses 28 28

Repurchase of shares 21185 259294 238109

Recognition of

equity-settled

share-based payments 24488 7799 32287

Shares vested under the

share award scheme

oftheCompany 8117 9745 1628

Dividends recognised as

distribution during

the year note 14 2038718 2038718

At 30 June 2008 8716920 25933 9872 37806 5308 11923 7158745 15942661

Profit for the year and

total income recognised

fortheyear 426247 426247

lssueofshares 47313 6958 40355

Shares issue expenses 35 35

Repurchase of shares 39088 361468 322380

Recognition of equity-settled

share-based payments 25619 2169 27788

Shares vested under the

share award scheme

of the Company 7477 9745 2268

Dividends recognised as

distribution during

the year note 14 4995334 4995334

At 30 June 2009 8764198 65021 9872 56467 2178 2225922 11119302
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37 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The followings are the major deferred tax liabilities assets recognised by the Group and movements thereon during the

current and prior reporting periods

Undistributed

Fair value Arising from earnings of

Accelerated adjustments business PRC jointly

tax on investment combinations controlled Tax

depreciation properties Note entities losses Others Total

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

At July 2007 as restated 161776 487912 241518 165076 854 725276

Charge credit to

consolidated income

statement

Current year as restated 23810 105887 864 68898 5267 891 191573

Effect of change

in tax rate 9624 27881 13801 9433 49 41824

Chargetoreserve 2149 2149

At3OJune2008

as restated 175962 565918 226853 68898 160910 453 877174

Charge credit to

consolidated income

statement 29286 118834 864 55135 3796 542198053

At3OJune2009 205248 684752 225989 124033 164706 89 1075227

Note Such deferred tax liabilities are attributable to taxable temporary differences arising on initial recognition of assets which were

acquired in business combinations

The deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset for the purposes of balance sheet presentation

At the balance sheet date the Group had available unused tax losses of HK$1629 million 2008 HK$1550 million to

offset against future profits deferred tax asset of HK$165 million 2008 HK$161 million in respect of tax losses of

HK$998 million 2008 HK$975 million has been recognised No deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the

remaining tax losses of HK$631 million 2008 HK$575 million due to the unpredictability of future profit streams The

tax losses available may be carried forward indefinitely
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38 ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARY

On August 2008 the Group acquired 100% of the issued share capital of Mingway Company Limited from certain

directors of the Company for total consideration of approximately HK$208 million This consideration was arrived at by

reference to the fair value of the underlying investment properties on date of acquisition as valued by DTZ This

acquisition has been accounted for as acquisition of assets as Mingway Company Limited is principally engaged in

property investment and only holds certain commercial units at Wu Chung House No 213 Queens Road East Wanchai

Hong Kong

The net assets acquired in the transaction are as follows

HK$OOO

Net assets acquired

Investment properties 210000

Trade and other receivables 825

Bank balances 393

Trade and other payables 216

Rental and other deposits 2602

208400

Total consideration satisfied by

Cash 208400

Net cash outflow arising on acquisition

Cash consideration paid 208400

Bank balances acquired 393

208007

39 DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY

As referred to in note 9a the Company completed the disposal of its subsidiary Nomusa during the year ended 30

June 2008

HK$OOO

Net assets disposed of

Interest in jointly controlled entity 204263

Long-term loans and receivables 417998

622261

Gain on disposal 3949339

Net cash received 4571600

Sale consideration received satisfied in cash 4579982

Expenses paid on disposal 8382

4571600

The resulting gain on disposal of HK$3949339000 was included in the gain on disposal of jointly controlled entities and

associates in the consolidated income statement for the year ended 30 June 2008

The subsidiary disposed of did not contribute to the Groups profit before taxation for the year ended June 2008 and the

subsidiary did not contribute to the Groups cash flows for the year ended 30 June 2008 The subsidiary did not

contribute to the Groups turnover for the years ended 30 June 2008
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40 PROJECT COMMITMENTS

Expressway projects

At 30 June 2008 the Group had outstanding commitments to make capital contribution to jointly controlled

entity West Route JV for the development of Phase II of the Western Delta Route in the PRC Phase II West of

approximately RMB96 million

At 30 June 2009 the Group had agreed subject to approval of the relevant PRC authorities to make capital

contribution to West Route JV for the development of Phase II and Phase Ill of the Western Delta Route of

approximately RMB4O3 million 2008 Nil and RMB98O million 2008 RMB571 million respectively

In addition to the above the Groups attributable share of the commitments of certain jointly controlled entities of

the Group in respect of the acquisition of property and equipment and construction of Phase II West contracted

for but not provided totalling approximately HK$521 million at 30 June 2009 2008 HK$1658 million

Residential and commercial property project

On 23 June 2009 tender submitted by joint venture company of the Group was accepted by the Urban

Renewal Authority in respect of the development of the Lee Tung Street Project in Wanchai The Group and the

joint venture partner will jointly hold and develop the project through their respective shareholding of 50% in the

joint venture company At the balance sheet date the total commitment of the Group is expected to be

approximately HK$4.15 billion representing 50% of the total budgeted development and related costs of the

project

Power plant project

The Groups share of the commitments of the joint venture company in respect of the development of the power

plant is as follows

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Authorised but not yet contracted for 19305 201968

Contracted for but not provided 733544 248769

752849 450737

Commercial and hotel property project

Pursuant to cooperation agreement entered into between the Group and PRC party to develop and lease

commercial and hotel complex property in Guangzhou the PRC the Group is mainly responsible for the fitting-

out of the property and the purchase of machinery and equipment required for the operation of the property at

the estimated total costs of not less than RMB1 000 million Upon the completion of the property development

the Group is entitled to operate the property for specified period by paying fixed amounts of monthly rental

which will be increased progressively with maximum annual rental of RMB1 78 million Total rental payable under

the operating period is approximately RMB3.5 billion Up to the balance sheet date the Group had not incurred

any material cost for this property project

Property development

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Projects undertaken by the Group

Authorised but not yet contracted for 861952 346520

Contracted for but not provided 150638 397348

1012590 743868
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40 PROJECT COMMITMENTS continued

Property renovation

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Property renovation expenditure contracted for but not provided 9551 6502

41 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The Group as lessor

Rental income from investment properties earned during the year is approximately HK$546 million 2008 HK$463

millionAt the balance sheet date the investment properties of the Group with an aggregate carrying amount of

approximately HK$7725 million 2008 HK$6800 million which were rented out under operating leases These

properties have committed tenants for the next one to ten years without termination options granted to the tenants

At the balance sheet date the Group had contracted with tenants for the following future minimum payments under

non-cancellable operating leases

The Group

2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO

Within one year 301721 323205

In the second to fifth years inclusive 333509 331380

After five years 5352 59

640582 654644

42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Disposal of CEPA
In connection with the disposal by the Group of its interests in Consolidated Electric Power Asia Limited CEPA in

prior years the Group entered into an agreement with the purchaser under which the purchaser and its affiliates

agreed to release and discharge the Group from all claims whatsoever they may have against the Group arising

under the sale agreement The Group has also agreed to release and discharge the purchaser and its affiliates from

all claims whatsoever the Group may have against them In this connection the Group has given certain

performance undertakings and indemnities to the purchaser and its affiliates for which provision totalling

approximately HK$84 million had been made in the consolidated financial statements in prior years
The provision

represents managements best estimate of the costs and expenses required to discharge the Groups obligations

and liabilities under such agreement The directors are of the opinion that the provision is not expected to be

payable within one year from the balance sheet date and accordingly is classified as non-current
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42 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES continued

Guarantees

TheGroup

subsidiary of the Company acted as guarantor for the repayment of the mortgage bank loans granted to

purchasers of the subsidiarys properties amounted to HK$2 million at 30 June 2009 2008 HK$7 million

ii As at 30 June 2008 bank guarantee of approximately RMB28 million was given by jointly controlled entity

of the Group for its purchase of machineries from overseas suppliers The Groups share of the guarantee of

the jointly controlled entity amounted to approximately RMB1 million as at 30 June 2008 Such guarantee

was released during the current year

The Company

As at 30 June 2009 the credit facilities of the Companys subsidiaries to the aggregate extent of HK$13865

million 2008 HK$13965 million are guaranteed by the Company Such facilities were utilised in relation to

utility deposit guarantee to the extent of HK$13 million 2008 HK$13 million as at 30 June 2009

43 RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME

The Group has established Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme the MPF Scheme for its Hong Kong employees The

assets of the scheme are held separately in funds which are under the control of independent trustees The retirement

benefit scheme contributions charged to the consolidated income statement represent contributions paid or payable

by the Group to the scheme at 5% of each of the employees monthly relevant income capped at HK$20000

The employees employed by the PRC subsidiaries are members of the state-managed retirement benefit schemes

operated by the PRC government The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute certain percentage of their payroll to

the retirement benefit schemes to fund the benefits The only obligation of the Group with respect to the retirement

benefit schemes is to make the required contributions under the schemes

The total costs charged to the consolidated income statement for the year of HK$8876000 2008 HK$8178000

represent contributions paid or payable to the schemes by the Group in respect of the current accounting period At the

balance sheet date there were no forfeited contributions available to reduce future obligations

44 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In additions to the transactions and balances with related parties disclosed above the Group has the following

transactions with related parties

The registered capital amounting to HK$702 million previously injected by subsidiary of the Company to GS

Superhighway JV was repaid by GS Superhighway JV during the year ended 30 June 2008 According to the Law of the

PRC on Chinese-foreign Contractual Joint Venture in relation to the repayment of registered capital before the expiry of

the joint venture operation period the subsidiary of the Company as the foreign joint venture partner is required to

undertake the financial obligations of GS Superhighway JV to the extent of HK$702 million when GS Superhighway JV

fails to meet its financial obligations during the joint venture operation period

Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration paid or payable to the Groups key management personnel amounted to HK$36 million 2008 HK$58

million which comprises share-based payments of HK$3 million 2008 HK$14 million and short term benefits of HK$33

million 2008 HK$44 million Such remuneration is determined by the Board having regard to the performance of

individuals and market trends
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45 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be able to continue as going concern while

maximising the return to shareholders through the optimisation of the debt and equity balance The Groups overall

strategy remains unchanged from that of the prior year

The capital structure of the Group consists of equity attributable to equity holders of the Company comprising issued

share capital and premiumretained profits and other reserves

The directors of the Company review the capital structure periodically As part of this review the directors of the

Company assess budgets of major projects taking into account of the provision of funding Based on the operating

budgets the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks associated with each class of capital and balance its

overall capital structure through the payment of dividends new share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of

debts

46 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Categories of financial instruments

The Group The Company

2008 2009 2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Financial assets

Loans and receivable at amortised cost

including cash and cash equivalents 1955175 5335082 17573715 12716833

Available-for-sale investments 65096 33318 3000 3000

12020271 5368400 17576715 12719833

Financial liabilities

Liabilities at amortised cost 367722 343008 331791 303022

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Groups and the Companys major financial instruments include loan receivable available-for-sale investments

loan to jointly controlled entity trade and other receivables amounts due from subsidiaries bank balances and

cash trade and other payables rental and other deposits and amounts due to associates/subsidiaries/a jointly

controlled entity and minority shareholder of subsidiary Details of these financial instruments are disclosed in

respective notes The risks associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate these

risks are set out below The Group manages and monitors these exposures to ensure that appropriate measures

are implemented in timely and effective manner The Groups overall strategy remains unchanged from that of

the prior year

The main risks arising from the Groups and the Companys financial instruments are market risks including

currency risk interest rate risk and price risk credit risk and liquidity risk The directors review and agree policies

for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below

Market risks

Currency risk

The Group and the Company undertake certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies hence

exposures to exchange fluctuations arise Certain of the Groups and the Companys financial assets and

liabilities are denominated in Hong Kong dollars Renminbi RMB or United States dollars US dollars

which are currencies other than the functional currencies of the respective group entity The Group manages

its foreign currency risk by constantly monitoring the movement of the foreign exchange rates
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46 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies continued

Market risks continued

Currency risk continued

The carrying amounts of the Groups and the Companys foreign currency denominated monetary assets

and liabilities at the reporting date are as follows

The Group

Assets Liabilities

2008 2009 2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

Hong Kong dollars 58712 1996139 73606 1039

RMB 380023 126432 59

US dollars 3050778 1001291 1569

The Company

Assets Liabilities

2008 2009 2008 2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

restated

RMB 471 125

USdollars 155 140113

Currency risk sensitivity analysis

As Hong Kong dollars are pegged to US dollars it is assumed that there would be no material currency risk

exposure on between these two currencies The Groups and the Companys foreign currency risk is mainly

concentrated on the fluctuations of RMB against Hong Kong dollars The sensitivity analysis below includes

only currency risk related to RMB and Hong Kong dollars denominated monetary items of group entities

whose functional currencies are Hong Kong dollars and RMB respectively The sensitivity analysis of the

Group also includes currency risk exposure on inter-company balances

The sensitivity analysis includes only outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary items as

disclosed above and adjusts their translation at the year end for 5% change in foreign currency rates

The Group

At the balance sheet date if the exchange rate of RMB against Hong Kong dollars had been strengthened

weakened by 5% which is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key

management personnel and represents managements assessment of the reasonably possible change in

foreign exchange rates the Groups profit would decrease/increase by approximately HK$93.4 million for the

year ended 30 June 2009 2008 increase/decrease by HK$73.9 million

The Company
At the balance sheet date if the exchange rate of RMB against Hong Kong dollars had been strengthened/

weakened by 5% which is the sensitivity rate used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key

management personnel and represents managements assessment of the reasonably possible change in

foreign exchange rates the Companys profit would increase/decrease by approximately HK$6000 for the

year ended 30 June 2009 2008 HK$24000

In addition certain jointly controlled entities of the Group had foreign currency bank loans as at 30 June

2009 and 2008 Foreign currency exposure associated with these foreign currency bank loans is disclosed in

note 23
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46 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies continued

Market risks continued

ii Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to fixed rate bank deposits and loan to jointly

controlled entity which is interest free The Company is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to

fixed rate bank deposits and amounts due from subsidiaries which are interest free It is the Groups policy to

keep certain amount of bank deposits at fixed interest rate

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in relation to certain bank deposits which are subject to

changes in prevailing floating interest rates The Company has insignificant cash flow interest rate risk

exposure related to bank deposits carried at floating interest rates The Groups and the Companys cash flow

interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on the fluctuation of the prevailing market interest rate

Interest rate risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined based on the Groups exposure to interest rates in

relation to interest bearing loan to jointly controlled entity and bank deposits carrying prevailing interest

rates at the balance sheet date and on the assumption that the amount outstanding at the balance sheet

date was outstanding for the whole year and held constant throughout the financial year

TheGroup

If interest rates on bank deposits carrying prevailing interest rates had been 50 basis points higher/lower

which is the sensitivity rate used when reporting interest rate risk internally to key management personnel

and represents managements assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates the profit for

the year ended 30 June 2009 would increase/decrease by approximately HK$0.8 million 2008 HK$3.0

million The analysis is prepared assuming the amount outstanding at the balance sheet was outstanding

for the whole year

iii Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk in relation to its available-for-sale investments The management

will closely monitor the equity price risk and will mitigate the risk exposure should the need arise The

Groups equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity instruments quoted in well-established stock

exchanges

Price risk sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to equity price risk on listed

equity investments at the reporting date

If the prices of the listed available-for-sale investments carried at fair value had been 10% higher/lower the

Groups investment valuation reserve would increase/decrease by HK$3.0 million 2008 HK$6.2 million
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June2009

46 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies continued

Credit risk

The Groups and the Companys maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause financial loss to the Group and

the Company due to failure to discharge an obligation by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of

the respective recognised financial assets stated in the balance sheets and the amount of financial guarantees

issued by the Group or the Company as disclosed in note 42b

The Groups credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other receivables In order to minimise the credit

risk the management of the Group has monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover

overdue debts In addition the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each individual debt at each balance

sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts In this regard the

directors of the Company consider that the Groups credit risk is significantly reduced

Other than loan to jointly controlled entity and dividend receivable from jointly controlled entity the Group

has no significant concentration of credit risk with exposure spread over number of counterparties and

customers

The Companys credit risk is primarily attributable to amounts due from subsidiaries In order to minimise the

credit risk the directors of the Company review the recoverable amount of each individual amount due from

subsidiaries at each balance sheet date to ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable

amounts In this regard the directors of the Company consider that the Companys credit risk is significantly

reduced

The credit risks of the Group and the Company on liquid funds are limited because the counterparties are banks

with high credit-ratings assigned by international credit-rating agencies

Liquidity risk

The Groups total assets less current liabilities and the Groups net current assets at 30 June 2009 amounted to

HK$23209 million 2008 HK$27304 million and HK$5314 million 2008 HK$11676 million respectively

In the management of the liquidity risk the Group monitors and maintains level of cash and cash equivalents

deemed adequate by the management to finance the Groups operations and mitigates the effects of fluctuations

in cash flows The management monitors the utilisation of the available banking facilities and ensures compliance

with loan covenants As at 30 June 2009 the Group has unutilised syndicated loan facilities of HK$15950 million

2008 HK$15950 million and other banking facilities of HK$1502 million 2008 HK$1602 million

The following tables detail the contractual maturity of the Group and the Company for their financial liabilities The

tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the earliest date

on which the Group and the Company can be required to pay The tables include both interest and principal cash

flows The interest payments are computed using contractual rates or if floating based on the prevailing market

rates at the balance sheet date
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46 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies continued

Liquidity risk continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables

The Group

Repayable Over

on demand months but Total Carrying

or less than not more Over undiscoun ted amount at

month 1-2 months than year 1-5 years years cash flows 30.6.2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

2008

Non-interest bearing

Trade and other payables 15244 18864 43185 15969 193262 193262

Rental and otherdeposits 3785 5249 29526 64796 1260 104616 104616

Amounts due to associates 9865 9865 9865

Amount due to minority

shareholder of

subsidiary 78969 78969 59979

128894 24113 72711 80765 80229 386712 367722

Over

Repayable months but

on demand not more Total Carrying

or less than than Over undiscoun ted amount at

month 1-2 months than year 1-5 years years cash flows 30.6 .2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

2009

Non-interest bearing

Trade and other payables 108592 9434 9889 20997 148912 148912

Rental and other deposits 6639 4334 32907 75043 1260 120183 120183

Amount due to jointly

controlled entity 2243 2243 2243

Amounts due to associates 9741 9741 9741

Amount due to minority

shareholder of

subsidiary 78969 78969 61929

127215 13768 42796 96040 80229 360048 343008
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46 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS continued

Financial risk management objectives and policies continued

Liquidity risk continued

Liquidity and interest risk tables continued

The Company

Repayable Over

on demand months but Total Carrying

or less than not more Over undiscounted amount at

month 1-2 months than year -5 years years cash flows 30.6 .2008

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

2008

Non-interest bearing

Trade and other payables 5446 5446 5446

Amounts due to associates 9865 9865 9865

Amountsduetosubsidiaries 316480 316480 316480

331791 331791 331791

Repayable Over

on demand months but Total Carrying

or less than not more Over undiscounted amount at

month 1-2 months than year 1-5 years years cash flows 30.6 .2009

HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$ 000 HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO HK$OOO

2009

Non-interest bearing

Trade and other payables 8603 8603 8603

Amountsduetoassociates 9741 9741 9741

Amountsduetosubsidiaries 284678 284678 284678

303022 303022 303022

Fair value

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows

The fair value of available-for-sale investments with standard terms and conditions which are traded on

active liquid markets is determined with reference to quoted market bid prices

The fair value of other financial assets and liabilities is determined in accordance with generally accepted

pricing models based on discounted cash flow analysis or using prices or rates from observable current

market transactions as input

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of the financial assets and financial liabilities recorded at

amortised costs in the consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS continued

For the year ended 30 June 2009

47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the details of the subsidiaries at 30 June 2009 and 2008 which principally affect the

results assets or liabilities of the Group as the directors are of the opinion that complete list of all the subsidiaries will

be of excessive length Except as otherwise indicated all the subsidiaries are private companies incorporated and are

operating principally in the place of incorporation and all issued shares are ordinary shares None of the subsidiaries had

any loan capital outstanding during the year or at the end of the year

Proportion of

nominal value of

issuedcapita held by

the Company

Directly Indirectly

Name of company Paid up issued capital 2008 2009 2008 2009 Principal activities

Incorporated in Hong Kong

Banbury Investments Limited shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Property investment

Bayern Gourmet Food 3000000 shares of 90 90 Manufacture and

Company Limited HK$1 each sales of food

Chee Shing Company Limited 9680 shares of 100 100 Provision of

HK$100 each management

services

Exgratia Company Limited shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Property investment

GardenEast Limited 10000 shares of 100 100 Property investment

HK$100 each

GardenEast Management Limited 300000 share of 100 100 Property management

formerly known as Nice Strength HK$1 each

Investment Limited

HH Finance Limited 100000 shares of 100 100 Loanfinancing

HK$10 each

HHI Finance Limited share of HK$1 each 73.01 70.27 Loan financing

HITEC Management Limited 300000 shares of 100 100 Property management

HK$1 each

Hopewell Centre 209200 shares of 100 100 Property management

Management Limited HK$100 each

Hopewell China Development shares of HK$1 each 71.18 68.51 Investment in

Superhighway Limited ii and non-voting expressway project

deferred shares of

HK$1 each

Hopewell Construction 200000 shares of 100 100 Construction project

Company Limited HK$100 each management and

investment holding

Hopewell Food Industries Limited 1000000 shares of 100 100 Restaurant operation

HK$1 each
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47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES continued

Proportion of

nominal value of

issued capital held by

the Company

Directly Indirectly

Name of company Paid up issued capital 2008 2009 2008 2009 Principal activities

Incorporated in Hong Kong continued

HopewellGuangzhou-Zhuhai shares of HK$1 each 73.01 70.27 Investment in

Superhighway Development and non-voting expressway project

Limited ii deferred shares of

HK$1 each

Hopewell Hotels Management 3000000 shares of 100 100 Hotel management

Limited formerly known as HK$1 each

Mega Hotels Management Limited

Hopewell Property Management shares of 100 100 Building and carpark

Company Limited HK$100 each management

Hopewell Real Estate Agency Limited 30000 shares of 100 100 Property agents and

HK$100 each investment holding

Hopewell Wind Power Hong Kong shareof HK$1 each 100 lnvestmentinawind

Limited power project

H-Power Investor HK Limited share of HK$1 each 87.5 87.5 Investment in power

station project

Internationallrademart shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Property investment

Company Limited and 10000 and operation of

non-voting trademart

deferred shares of

HK$1 each

IT Catering and Services Limited shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Restaurant operations

and provision of

catering services

Kowloon Panda Hotel Limited shares of HK$100 100 100 Property investment

each and 20000 hotel ownership

non-voting and operations

deferred shares of

HK$100 each

Lok Foo Company Limited 52000 shares of 100 100 Investment holding

HK$100 each
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47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES continued

Proportion of

nominal value of

issued capital held by

the Company

Directly Indirectly

Name of company Paid up issued capital 2008 2009 2008 2009 Principal activities

Incorporated in Hong Kong continued

Panda Place Management Limited 300000 shares of 100 100 Property management

HK$1 each

QRE Plaza Limited 1000 shares of 100 100 Property investment

HK$100 each

QRE Plaza Management Limited 300000 shares 100 100 Property management

of HK$1 each

Slipform Engineering Limited 1000001 shares of 100 100 Construction project

HK$1 each consultant and

investment holding

Wetherall Investments Limited shares of HK$1 each 100 100 Property investment

and non-voting and investment

deferred shares of holding

HK$1 each

Yuba Company Limited 10000 shares of 100 100 Property investment

HK$1 each

Established in the PRC

I3 RMB99200000 95 95 Property development

registered capital

RMB500000 76 76 Property management

registered capital

RMB35O000000 100 100 Property management

registered capital
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47 PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES continued

Proportion of

nominal value of

issued capital held by

the Company

Directly Indirectly

Name of company Paid up issued capital 2008 2009 2008 2009 Principal activities

Incorporated in the British

Virgin Islands

Anber Investments Limited

Hopewell Huadu Estate Investment

Company Limited

Hopewell Wind Power Limited

Procelain Properties Ltd

Singway B.V.I Company Limited

Yeeko Investment Limited

Incorporated in the Cayman Islands

Delta Roads Limited

share of US$1 each

share of US$1 each

share of US$1 each

share of US$1 each

share of US$1 each

share of US$1 each

46422 shares of

HK$10 each

2961690283 shares of

HK$0.1 each

100 100 Investmentholding

100 100 lnvestmentholding

100 Investment holding

100 100 Property investment

100 100 Property investment

100 100 lnvestmentholding

100 100 Investment holding

0.29 72.72 70.27 Investment holdingHopewell Highway Infrastructure

Limited iii

Notes

Operating principally in Hong Kong

ii Operating principally in the PRC

iii Hopewell Highway Infrastructure Limited company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange is operating in Hong Kong and

the PRC through its subsidiaries and jointly controlled entities

The non-voting deferred shares carry practically no rights to dividends nor to receive notice of nor to attend or vote at

any general meeting of the relevant companies nor to participate in any distribution on winding up

Particulars of the subsidiaries including those subsidiaries not listed above will be annexed to the next annual return of

the Company to be filed with The Registrar of Companies in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
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48 PRINCIPAL ASSOCIATES

Particulars regarding the principal associates at 30 June 2009 and 2008 which is incorporated and operating in Hong

Kong are as follows

Proportion of

nominal value of

issued capital held

Name of company by the Group Principal activities

Granlai Company Limited 46 Property investment

HCNH Insurance Brokers Limited 25 Insurance brokerage

The directors are of the opinion that complete list of all the associates will be of excessive length Particulars of the

associates including those associates not listed above will be annexed to the next annual return of the Company to be

filed with The Registrar of Companies in accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance

49 APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements on pages 87 to 158 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 26

August 2009
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LIST OF MAJOR PROPERTIES

COMPLETED INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AND HOTEL PROPERTY UNLESS OTHERWISE

SPECIFIED THESE PROPERTIES ARE HELD UNDER MEDIUM TERM LEASES

Gross Groups

Property Location Use Site area floor area interest

sq.m sq.m

Hongkong Trademart Drive Conference exhibition 22280 161575 100

International Trade Kowloon Bay restaurant office

Exhibition Kowloon commercial and

Centre carparks

Hopewell Centre 183 Queens Road Commercial office and 5207 78102 100

Long-term lease East Wanchai carparks

Hong Kong

GardenEast 222 Queens Road Residential and 1082 8965 100

East Wanchai commercial use

Hong Kong

QRE Plaza 202 Queens Road Commercial use 464 7154 100

East Wanchai

Hong Kong

Panda Hotel

Hotel property 3TsuenWah Street Hotel operation 47167 100

Shopping Tsuen Wan Commercial 24595 100

arcade New Territories and carparks 5750 71762

carparks

Four commercial units G/F5/F 213 Commercial and N/A 1642 100

one restaurant and Queens Road carparks

80 carparking East Hong

spaces at Wu Kong

Chung House

Excluding carparking spaces
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LIST OF MAJOR PROPERTIES continued

PROPERTIES AND STOCK OF PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

Site Gross Groups

Property/land Location Use Stage of completion area floor area interest

sq.m sq.m

Hopewell Ship Street Hotel complex with Under planning stage 5835.8w 101 600 100

Centre II Kennedy Road recreation shopping

Hau Fung Lane restaurant and other

Wanchai commercial facilities

Hong Kong Development at

planning stage

12 Broadwood 12 Broadwood Road Residential use Planned Superstructure works in 2116 11000 100

Road Happy Valley to be completed in 2nd progress

Hong Kong quarter of 2010

Hopewell New Huadu district Residential commercial 95

Town Guangzhou China logistic and social

facilities

Initial Phase Completed N/A 35264

Remaining Phases Under planning stage
610200 1539229

Lee Tung Street Lee Tung Street Residential commercial Under planning stage 8220 77584 50

Project McGregor Street and other facilities

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Notes

Approximate gross floor area under present planning

Total development site area of the land required for the property development is about 9840 sq.m of which total of 5835.8 sq.m are

held by the Group and the remaining will be acquired by the Group mainly by way of land exchange with the government at

premium yet to be finalised

Hi The Group announced in November 2008 to reduce the gross floor area from the
original plan of 164091 m2 as per the Town

Planning Board Approval obtained in 1994 to about 101600 m2

iv These site area and gross floor area are based on land use rights certificates obtained and the latest master layout plan approved by

the relevant government authority
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Extraordinary special interim dividend paid

HK330 cents per ordinary share

Interim results announcement

Closure of Register

Interim dividend paid

HK4O cents per ordinary share

Special interim dividend by way of

distribution In specie of share in HHI for every

whole multiple of 10 shares in the Company

Final results announcement

Closure of Register

Annual General Meeting

Proposed final dividend payable

HK58 cents per ordinary share

14 November 2008

26 February 2009

16 March 2009 to 19 March 2009

both days inclusive

on 20 March 2009

on 31 March 2009

26 August 2009

October 2009 to 13 October 2009

both days inclusive

13 October 2009

on or about 14 October 2009
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